Public Document Pack

ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL * Ashfield

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council Offices,
Urban Road,
Kirkby in Ashfield
Nottingham
NG17 8DA

Agenda

Licensing Sub Committee

Date: Friday, 11th December, 2020

Time: 11.00 am

Venue: Ashfield District Council’s YouTube Channel

For any further information please contact:
Lynn Cain
l.cain@ashfield.gov.uk

01623 457317

If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting.


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCFr4nJ9HVt9NAg1MlRMb4kw/featured

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

Membership
Chairman: Councillor Warren Nuttall
Councillors:
Rachel Madden
John Wilmott

Caroline Wilkinson (Substitute Member)

FILMING/AUDIO RECORDING NOTICE

This meeting may be subject to filming or audio recording. If you have any queries
regarding this, please contact Members’ Services on 01623 457317.

SUMMONS

You are hereby requested to attend a meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee to be held
at the time and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the business
set out below.

Carol Cooper-Smith
Chief Executive



AGENDA Page

To receive apologies for absence, if any.

Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests and
Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests.

Hearing for Application for a New Premises Licence: The First 5-150
Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton in Ashfield.

e Report, Evidence and Representations: pages 5-62.

¢ Notice of Representation and Evidence Bundle by
Nottinghamshire Police: pages 63-150.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Report To: LICENSING COMMITTEE | Date: 11™ DECEMBER 2020
HEARING OF AN APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES

Heading: LICENCE: THE FIRST POST, 16 BROOK STREET, SUTTON IN
ASHFIELD

Portfolio Holder: REGULATORY SERVICES

Ward/s: CENTRAL & NEW CROSS / ST MARY'’S

Key Decision: NO

Subject to Call-In: NO

Purpose Of Report

For Members to consider the details contained within this report, alongside any evidence
presented, and/ or representations made, at the hearing of an application for a New Premises
Licence by Trebor Deeas Ltd in relation to The First Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton in Ashfield,
Nottinghamshire, NG17 1AL; and to determine the application by taking such of the steps set
out below as the Sub-Committee considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing
objectives.

Recommendation(s)

Members having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take such of the
following steps as they consider appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives:

a) Grantthe licence in accordance with the application.

Modify the conditions of the operating schedule by altering or omitting or adding to
them.

Exclude or restrict from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to
which the application relates.

Reject the whole of the application.

The Sub-Committee may also grant the licence subject to different conditions for different parts
of the premises or the different licensable activities.

Page 5




Reasons for Recommendation(s)

Members must consider all evidence offered at the Hearing and make an unbiased decision on
the evidence offered. In making any decision, Members must also have regard to the Home
Office statutory guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (which can be
found online at):
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachme
nt data/file/705588/Revised guidance _issued under_section 182 of the Licensing A
ct 2003 April 2018 .pdf

and the Council's own Statement of Licensing Policy (which can be found online at):
https://www.ashfield.gov.uk/your-council/strategies-plans-policies/policies/

Alternative Options Considered (With Reasons Why Not Adopted)

None

Detailed Information

The Licensing Act 2003 came in to force in September 2005. It passed the powers to the Local
Authority to licence premises for any of the following licensable activities:

e The sale by retail of alcohol;

e The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club or to the order of a member of the
club;

e The provision of regulated entertainment; and

e The provision of late night refreshment.

The licensing objectives are:

e The prevention of crime and disorder;
e The promotion of public safety;

e The prevention of public nuisance; and
e The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives, so that
the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times. However, the
legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These are vitally important
and should be principal aims for everyone involved in licensing work.

Section 18 of the 2003 Act, allows Interested Persons, and Responsible Authorities, to make
representations in favour or against applications for the grant of a Premises Licence. Should
representations be made that cannot be resolved between the parties during any consultation
period, then the application must be determined by a Licensing Committee or Sub-Committee
Hearing.

Under the 2003 Act the Licensing Authority is itself a ‘Responsible Authority’ and can make
representations in a formal capacity where it is considered necessary for the promotion of one
or more of the licensing objectives. This role is separate from the general licensing functions
of the Authority.

Page 6



Other Relevant Considerations

The Sub-Committee is reminded of its responsibilities under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
(to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the Ashfield District) and the Human
Rights Act (which guarantees the right to a fair hearing for all parties in the determination of
their civil rights, and also provides for the protection of property, which may include licences in
existence, and the protection of private and family life) when considering the fair balance
between the interests of the all parties to this Hearing.

Any decision taken by the Sub-Committee must be necessary and proportionate to the
objectives being pursued.

Members are reminded that whenever they make a decision under the Licensing Act 2003, they
have a duty to act with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.

When considering any representations, only those issues relating to the licensing objectives
should be considered, and appropriate weight given to the importance and relevance of each
representation.

Members should note that the applicant or persons making representations have the right of
appeal against the decision made by the Sub-Committee.

Summary of Application

On 15" October 2020, the Licensing Authority received an application from Trebor Deeas Ltd
for the grant of a New Premises Licence for The First Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton in Ashfield,
Nottinghamshire, NG17 1AL, seeking to provide licensable activities at the premises which is a
situated on a mixed commercial and residential street on the outskirts of Sutton in Ashfield town
centre, close to the Brook Street / Morven Avenue junction.

A summary of the licensable activities applied for and the times proposed for these activities
can be found detailed below.

Sale of Alcohol (on and off sales):
Monday — Sunday 09:00 Until 03:00

Regulated Entertainment (all indoors only): Plays, Films, Indoor Sporting Events, Live
Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, Entertainment similar in nature to
Music & Dance:

Monday — Sunday 09:00 Until 03:00

Late Night Refreshment (provided to take place both indoors and outdoors):
Monday — Sunday 23:00 Until 03:00

For all of the above licensable activities to be provided: For an additional hour at the end
of standard hours when British Summertime commences; and from the commencement
of licensable activities on New Year's Eve until the standard commencement of
licensable activities on New Year’s Day.

Page 7



A summary of the proposed opening hours can be found detailed below.

Opening Hours:

Monday - Sunday 09:00 Until 03:30

For the Opening Hours to be extended: For an additional hour at the end of standard
hours when British Summertime commences; and from the time of opening on New
Year’s Eve until the standard opening hours on New Year’s Day.

Both the application and the steps that the applicant intends to take to promote the licensing
objectives can be found at Appendix One.

Due to a lack of detailed information as to the nature of the proposed licensed business venture
(the application simply states Public House — seeking a 3am licence) the Licensing Authority
considers that the Operating Schedule does not adequately address the prevention of crime
and disorder, the prevention of public nuisance, and the protection of children from harm
Agreement was sought from the Applicant to attach a more robust set of conditions and
operational polices to the grant of any New Premises Licence. At the time of the consultation
period closing, no response had been received and no agreement had been reached with the
Applicant.

As no response was received, and the concerns regarding the lack of detail remain, the
Licensing Authority has submitted a formal representation in its capacity as a ‘Responsible
Authority’ proposing additional conditions and operational polices which are considered
necessary to safeguard and promote the licensing objectives. A copy of the requested
conditions (to replace those originally proposed by the applicant) and the operational policies
are attached at Appendix Two.

During the 28 day consultation period the Licensing Team received a representation from
Nottinghamshire Police raising concerns as to the proposed application undermining the
licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and the protection of children from
harm.

The Police have also proposed conditions that would uphold this licensing objective, and
proposed amendments to the permitted hours for licensable activities (a reduction to 01:30
hours) and the hours that the premises would be open to the public (a reduction to 02:00 hours).
A copy of the Police representation is attached at Appendix Three.

One representation has been received from a local resident objecting to the application. A copy
of the representation is attached at Appendix Four. The representation raises concerns that
the proposed business may undermine the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and
disorder, and the prevention of public nuisance.

A map detailing the general location of the premises is attached at Appendix Five.

Page 8



Implications

Corporate Plan:

Licensing Act 2003 is a statutory duty of the Council.

Ensuring that Premises and Clubs operate with the correct Licence, having regard to the
Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy on alcohol, regulated entertainment, and late
refreshment licensing, will contribute towards the reduction of crime and disorder within the
district and to improve community safety and environmental quality.

Legal:

Legal advice will be given at the hearing.

Finance:
Information Only
No financial implications for the Council.

This report is effective from 11" December 2020 and has the following financial implications:

Budget Area Implication
General Fund — Revenue Budget None
General Fund — Capital Programme None
Housing Revenue Account — Revenue Budget None
Housing Revenue Account — Capital Programme | None

Risk:
Risk Mitigation
It is important that due process is The hearing has been organised to ensure that
followed in considering this due process is followed, with appropriate support

application to ensure that the correct | from the Council’s legal representative to ensure
decision is reached which could not this.

be challenged on the grounds that the
specified procedures have not been
followed.

Human Resources:

Information Only: There are no direct HR implications contained within this report

Equalities (to be completed by the author):

Information Only: Statutory requirement of the Licensing Act 2003, there no diversity or equality
implications.

Page 9



Other Implications:
None

Reason(s) for Urgency (if applicable):

Not applicable

Background Papers

Appendix One: Application for a New Premises Licence

Appendix Two: Proposed conditions & Operational Policies of the Licensing Authority

Appendix Three:  Representation from Nottinghamshire Police (incl. Proposed conditions
and hours)

Appendix Four: Representation from Interested Party

Appendix Five: Location Map

Report Author and Contact Officer

Joanne Lindley
Licensing Enforcement Officer

i.lindley@ashfield.gov.uk

01623 457513

Page 10



APPENDIX ONE

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We Trebor Deeas Ltd

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the
relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

The First Post

16 Brook Street
Sutton in Ashfield
Nottingham

Post town Postcode NG17 1AL

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £7,600

Part 2 - Applicant details
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * [ ] please complete section (A)
b) a person other than an individual *

i asalimited company/limited liability
partnership
ii  as a partnership (other than limited liability)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)
iii  as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)
iv  other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

c) a recognised club please complete section (B)

ODo0dddX

d) a charity please complete section (B)

Page 11



e) the proprietor of an educational establishment please complete section (B)

f) a health service body please complete section (B)

OO O

g) a person who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

please complete section (B)

ga) aperson who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part [_|  please complete section (B)
1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within
the meaning of that Part) in an independent
hospital in England

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in [ ] please complete section (B)
England and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one box
below):

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 2

premises for licensable activities; or
I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

O
O

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

. Other Title (for
Mr [] Mrs [] Miss [ ] Ms [] example, Rev)
Surname First names
Date of birth | am 18 years old or over [ ] Please tick yes
Nationality

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see
note 15 for information)

Page 12




SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

. Other Title (for
Mr [] Mrs [] Miss [ ] Ms [] example, Rev)
Surname First names
Date of birth I am 18 years old or over [] Please tick yes
Nationality

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see
note 15 for information)

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name

Trebor Deeas Ltd

Address
92 Rolleston Drive

Arnold
Nottingham

NG5 7JP

Registered number (where applicable)

09039437

Page 13




Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)
Limited Company

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Part 3 Operating Schedule

DD MM YYYY
als[afp[ | | [ ]

When do you want the premises licence to start?

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when DD MM YYYY
do you want it to end? HEEEEEEE

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

Public House

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any ‘
one time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Please tick all that
apply

a)  plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) X

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)

b)  films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)
c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

X O X K

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

Page 14




f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), () or (g)

") (if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 15

X X



A

Plays Will the performance of a play take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors ]

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00 | Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

Fri 09:00 | 03:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the performance of plays at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat . :

09:00 | 03:00 If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard

times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sun- | 09:00 | 03:00 | From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 15t January.

Page 16




B

Films Will the exhibition of films take place indoors

Standard days and or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors

timings (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors ]

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00 | Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Occasional exhibition of films.

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please
read guidance note 5)

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

Fri 09:00 | 03:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat . .

09:00 | 03:00 If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard

times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sun 09:00 | 03:00 | From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 15t January.

Page 17




C

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)

Day Start Finish

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00

Occasional games usually played on licensed premises.

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

read guidance note 5)

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for

indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri 09:00 | 03:00

Sat 09:00 | 03:00

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 15t January.

Page 18




D

Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment
take place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors []
please tick (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed
in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 19




E

Live music Will the performance of live music take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00 | Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Occasional unamplified and amplified music by various artists/groups.

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

Fri 09:00 | 03:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the performance of live music at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat . :

09:00 | 03:00 If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard

times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sun 09:00 | 03:00 | From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 15t January.

Page 20




F

Recorded music

Will the playing of recorded music take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors ]

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00 | Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

Fri 09:00 | 03:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat . :

09:00 | 03:00 If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard

times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sun 09:00 | 03:00 | From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 15 January.

Page 21




G

Performances of dance
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish

Will the performance of dance take place
indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors
(please read guidance note 3)

Outdoors

Both ]

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Occasional performance of dance by various artists/groups.

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please
read guidance note 5)

Fri 09:00 | 03:00

Sat 09:00 | 03:00

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the performance of dance at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 15t January.

Page 22




H

Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or
9

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Day Start Finish

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00

Will this entertainment take place indoors or Indoors X

outdoors or both — please tick (please read

guidance note 3) Outdoors ]
Both ]

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Thur 1 09:00 | 03:00

Fri | 09:00 | 03:00

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read
guidance note 5)

Sat
09:00 | 03:00

Sun
09:00 | 03:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the entertainment of a similar description to that falling within
(e), (f) or (q) at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 15t January.

Page 23




Late night refreshment

Will the provision of late night refreshment

Standard days and take place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors

timings (please read please tick (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors

Day | Start | Finish Both X

Mon | 23:00 | 03:00 | Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue | 23:00 | 03:00

Wed | 23:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur | 23:00 | 03:00

Fri 23:00 | 03:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

sat | 2300 | 0300 |
If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sun | 23:00 | 03:00

From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 15t January.

Page 24




J

Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption | op the

Standard days and — please tick (please read guidance note 8) premises [

timings (please read

guidance note 7) Off the [
premises

Day Start Finish Both X

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

guidance note 5)

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for

the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the

Fri 09:00 | 03:00

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sat 09:00 | 03:00 | From the standard start timing on 31 December to the standard start

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

time on the 15t January.

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as

designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the

checklist at the end of the form):

Name Mr Saeed Rafique

Date of birth 08/05/1971

Address

postcode | [ EEEE

Personal licence number (if known)
148478

Issuing licensing authority (if known)
Nottingham City Council

Page 25



ad05019
Rectangle

ad05019_1
Rectangle

ad05019_2
Rectangle


K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

As far as the applicant is aware none of the proposed activities should give rise to concern in
respect of children.

L

Hours premises are
open to the public

Standard days and

timings (please read

guidance note 7)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)

Day Start Finish
Mon | 09:00 | 03:30
Tue | 09:00 | 03:30
Wed | 09:00 | 03:30
Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open
to the public at different times from those listed in the column on
Thur | 09:00 | 03:30 | the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
Fri 09:00 | 03:30 | times on the day when British summertime comences.
From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 1% January.
Sat | 09:00 |03:30 | vary
Sun | 09:00 | 03:30

Page 26




M

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)

The premises will operate in accordance with all relevant legislation.

The premises will liaise and co-cooperate with the Responsible Authorities

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

A CCTV system with recording equipment must be installed and maintained at the premises and
operated with cameras in positions agreed with the Police. All recordings used in conjunction
with CCTV must:

Be of evidential quality in all lighting conditions;

Indicate the correct time and date; and

Be retained for a period of 31 consecutive days.

¢) Public safety

The premises will operate in accordance with all relevant legislation which promotes the
prevention of public safety objective. For example, the Health & Safety and Food Safety
legislation

The premises will liaise and co-operate with the Responsible Authorities.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

The premises will operate in accordance with all relevant legislation which promotes the
prevention of public nuisance objective. For example, Environmental Protection Act 1990.

Arrangements for the storage and disposal of refuse will not cause a nuisance.

The premises will liaise and co-operate with the Responsible Authorities.

Page 27




e) The protection of children from harm

A Challenge 21 scheme must operate at the premises. Any person who appears to be under 21
years of age must not be served alcohol unless they produce an acceptable form of identification
(passport, photo driving licence, Military Identity card or PASS accredited card).

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

e | have made or enclosed payment of the fee.
® | have enclosed the plan of the premises.

e | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others
where applicable.

® | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual | wish to be designated
premises supervisor, if applicable.

® | understand that I must now advertise my application.

e | understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected.

® [Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not a
limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] | have
included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom or
my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work checking service ]
(please read note 15).

X XX OXKX

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

o [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a

Declaration partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] | understand |

Page 28



am not entitled to be issued with a licence if | do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if | am subject to a condition
preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if | cease to
be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

e The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work
relating to a licensable activity) and | have seen a copy of his or her
proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to work
check using the Home Office online right to work checking service
which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15)

Signature h {Mﬁvx{j Lo Can Suddtin Cfﬁ

Date 15 October 2020

Capacity Authorised Agent

For joint applications, signature of 2"® applicant or 2" applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please
state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with
this application (please read guidance note 14)

Walaiti Rathore

Licensing Law Consultancy
3 The Triangle

NG2 Business Park

Queens Drive

Post town ‘ Nottingham Postcode ‘ NG2 1AE

Telephone number (if any) ‘ 0115 784 3822

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

walaiti.rathore@licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk

Page 29




Notes for Guidance

1.

2.

Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will
be and its proximity to the premises.

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such
screening abides by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:

o aperformance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, on any premises.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for
the premises.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or

Page 30



10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

15.

(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

e Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.

e Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, with no limit on audience size for:

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local
authority;

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the
health care provider;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience,
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for
more than 28 consecutive days.

Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors
may include a tent).

For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified
or unamplified.

For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during
the summer months.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the
premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the
premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please
tick “both’.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to
the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless
of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of
gaming machines.

Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agent
must sign the application form.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications
from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is

resident in the UK who:
e does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or

Page 31



e s subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017
will become invalid if the holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not
subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be
certified), or 2) by providing their ‘share code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry
out a check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

e An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies
having the right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the
passport to copy].

e An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a
person named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

o A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the
Home Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

e A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a
national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

e Acurrent Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by
the Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

e A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration
control, is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or
has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

e A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely
in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

e A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination
with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number

and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

e A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or
Ireland when produced in combination with an official document giving the

Page 32



person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and
is currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder
from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by
the Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently
stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a
national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family
member of such a national or who has derivative rights or residence.

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the
Home Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may
stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the
holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity when
produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent
National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a
previous employer.

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office
under regulation 18(3) or 20(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area)
Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state
or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative
rights of residence.

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their
permission to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office
acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or reasonable evidence that the
person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration decision,
such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in the UK including:

o evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,

o evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family
member — e.g. a marriage certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth
certificate, and

o evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of
permanent residence in the UK or is one of the following if they have been
in the UK for more than 3 months:

Page 33



0] working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the
employer,

(i) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a
bank,

(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence
of sufficient funds; or

(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially
independent must also provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and any
family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private
medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided:

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(i) any page containing the holder’s photograph;

(ii1) any page containing the holder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in
the UK and is permitted to work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve
us checking your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share
information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you
have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may
demonstrate their right to work by allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with
the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service,
applicants should include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon
accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the
applicant’s date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority to
carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the
applicant is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have
an immigration status that can be checked online. The Home Office online right to work
checking service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order
to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should
submit copy documents as set out above.

Page 34


https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR.

SCALE

External Yard

&
Kitchen

Store (sD)

6@ Bar

(SD) SMOKE DETECTOR

External

‘
*(@’ EMERGENCY LIGHTING
: Walkway

M FIRE ALARM SOUNDER

FIRE ALARM BREAK POINT
PB  PANIC BAR
FD30 30MIN FIRE DOOR

SC SELF CLOSER
®
FIRE EXIT SIGNS TO BS5499PT1
E'J FIRE ALARM PANEL
BA|
[
Entrance
Rev  Description Date By
Dwe TITLE FLOOR PLAN
THE FIRST PoST
|6 BROOK STREET
SUTTON-IN-ASHFIELD
NOTTS
NGI7 IAL
Client A RAFIQUE
SCALE 1:100@AL
DATE SEPT '20
DRAWING NO.  PosT-0| REV
[ | | | | | | | | | |
SSUE PLANNING
Im 2m 3m 4m Sm 10m comrano0

1:100

Page 35



Page 36



APPENDIX TWO

J.Alison

From: J.Alison

Sent: 06 November 2020 12:05

To: ‘walaiti.rathore@licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk’

Subject: RE: THE FIRST POST, BROOK STREET, SUTTON IN ASHFIELD
Attachments: REP - HILL.pdf; HEARING PROCEDURES.pdf; LETTER TO APPLICANT.pdf

Dear Mr Rathore

Further to my own email to you seeking your client to agree to my proposed conditions and
operational procedures, | have heard nothing further from you.

However, we have received a letter of objection from a local resident — a copy of which is
attached.

As such, this will lead to the need for the application to be determined by the Licensing Sub-
Committee, and | have also attached a copy of our Hearing Procedures.

In relation to my previous email to you, as mentioned at the time, should | not receive agreement
to the proposed conditions and operational policies, my previous email should now be interpreted
as an objection to the application, on the grounds that the application as it was submitted
undermines the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of
public nuisance, and the protection of children from harm.

Kindest regards
Julian Alison

Licensing Manager
Places & Communities
Ashfield District Council
Urban Road
Kirkby-in-Ashfield
Nottinghamshire

NG17 8DA

T: 01623 457364 (Int: 4364) | M: 07989 531419
E: j.alison@ashfield.gov.uk | W: www.ashfield.gov.uk/licensing

From: J.Alison
Sent: 16 October 2020 16:46
To: 'walaiti.rathore@licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk' <walaiti.rathore @licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk>

Subject: THE FIRST POST, BROOK STREET, SUTTON IN ASHFIELD
Importance: High

Dear Walaiti

Pagtla 37


ad05019_3
Rectangle


Unfortunately you didn’t provide any contact details within the Gov.UK application for either
yourself (as agent) or the applicant for discussion of the application. | trust this email address
which was recorded for the Gov.Uk payment transaction reaches you.

It would have been preferable that you contact myself and my colleagues at the Police prior to
submitting this application, however, having reviewed the application the premises is referred to in
no other detail than as a Public House, seeking to operate from 9am — 3am daily, with an
additional terminal hour when BST commences, and to remain open from commencement on NY
Eve to commencement on NY Day.

Having regard to this somewhat limited description within the application and the proposed
licensable hours and activities — | have attached Conditions and an Operational Policies document
to replace your proposed Operating Schedule within your application. | seek your agreement to
this please.

| have also copied my counterparts at Nottinghamshire Police into this email so that they have
sight of my request, and to avoid any duplication, however the Police may also raise relevant
matters directly to you about your application.

The consultation deadline expires at the end of 12.11.2020, so | will need to receive your
agreement to my proposal by then, to prevent me from making an official representation.

Kindest regards
Julian Alison

Licensing Manager
Places & Communities
Ashfield District Council
Urban Road
Kirkby-in-Ashfield
Nottinghamshire

NG17 8DA

T: 01623 457364 (Int: 4364) | M: 07989 531419
E: L.alison@ashfield.gov.uk | W: www.ashfield.gov.uk/licensing

Pagze 38



Conditions proposed for The Last Post

1

The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that all staff employed at the premises whose duties include
the sale or supply of alcohol shall undertake and complete a relevant programme of training prior to
them being authorised to sell or supply alcohol. Such training shall consist of providing staff with an
understanding of:

e The need to ensure the responsible sale and supply of alcohol
The need to refuse the sale and supply of alcohol to persons who are intoxicated or underage
The need to seek credible age verification from persons seeking to be sold or supplied alcohol who
may appear under the age of 18 years old

The content of the training programme shall be agreed with the Force Licensing Officer of
Nottinghamshire Police and the Licensing Authority prior to implementation.

Records of the training programme shall be maintained and made available to Authorised Officers upon
request.

The Premises Licence holder shall provide a “refresher” training sessionto all relevant staff members as
and when deemed necessary on a case by case evaluation, but as a minimum requirement the refresher
training session shall be provided to all staff on at least one occasion every six months.

The Premises Licence holder (or such person as he / she nhominates) shall provide 14 days prior written
netification to the Force Licensing Officer of Nottinghamshire Police and to the Licensing Authority of:

e Any extension of hours permitted under the Premises Licence
¢ Any one-off event that includes entertainment or a promotion that is not consistent with regular trade

Such written notifications shall provide the following details:

The name of the person in charge/authorising the sale of alcohol for the duration of the event.
The name of any promoters

The name of the any act, DJ's or other such performers involved

The nature of the event.

The date, the commencement and conclusion time of the event.

Security provisions (including numbers and working hours of SIA staff)

Expected numbers attending

A minimum of 2 door supervisors shall be on duty at any time that the premises is opento the public
after Midnight. All of whom will be individually registered with the Security Industry Authority and present
onthe premises between 20.00 hours to 30 minutes after the end of the last licensable activity.

The Premises Licence holder shall ensure that all staff employed in a security role at the premises shall
wear high visibility yellow florescent jackets/ vests which clearly identify them as members of the security
staff.

A Premises Daily Register shall be held at the premises. This Register shall be maintained for a rolling
minimum period of 12 morths, and shall record:

e The name of the personresponsible for the premises on each given day.
The name of the person authorising the sale of alcohol each day.
All calls made to the premises where there is a complaint made by a resident or neighbour of noise,
nuisance or anti-social behaviour by persons attending or leaving the premises. This shall record the
details of the caller, the time and date of the call and the time and date of the incident about which
the call is made and any actions taken to deal with the call.

¢ Any refusals on grounds of age and/or intoxication (to include date, time, member of staff involved,
reason for refusal as well as a brief physical description of the person refused)

e The name, SIA number, start and finish time of anyone employed in a security role for that day

Page 39



10.

11

e Any use of force by SlA registered staff in the effective management of the premises or in ejecting
persons from the premises (to include date, time, member of staff involved, reason for force as well
as a brief physical description of the person refused)

e Weekly checks of the CCTV, to ensure it is fully operational and any faults are dealt with including the
time of the check and the person that carried it out.

e Any calls to or visits by Nottinghamshire Police in relation to any crime and disorder or like related
matter.

The Designated Premises Supervisor shall check the Premises Daily Register on a weekly basis
ensuring that it is completed and up-to-date, sign the Premises Daily Register each time that it is
checked, and make the Premises Daily Register available for inspection by any Authorised Officer
throughout the trading hours of the premises.

The premises shall implement written policies and procedural statements and/or management action
plans. Such documents shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

CCTV

Conditions of Entry

Dispersal

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) & Vulnerable Persons
Noise

Queue Managemert

Responsible Service of Alcohol
Security Measures

Underage Sales & False Identification
Acceptable Forms of Identification
Challenge “25”

Zero Tolerance Drugs

The above policies and procedural statements shall be “live” documents, subject to amendment
following consultation with the Licensing Authority, Environmental Health Department, and
Nottinghamshire Police.

The CCTV policy shall incorporate the following basic requirements:

Be switched on and fully operational when the licensable activities are being carried out.

Record for a minimum rolling period of 31 days

Have a camera covering any erntrance / exit which will provide a facial shot of identification quality.
Have a means of copying any footage to another medium as evidence if requested by the Police
Have a member of staff working at all times whilst the licence is in operationthat is able to operate
the system and in particular be able to provide copies of any footage requested by The Police.

The policies / procedures referred to within shall be reviewed and amended at any time that the
Premises Licence holder deems appropriate, but shall in any case be reviewed following any concerns
being raised to the Premises Licence holder by any Authorised Officer. Such reviews when undertaken
shall seek the advice of the Force Licensing Officer of Nottinghamshire Police and the Licensing
Authority.

The Premises Licence holder shall ensure that all staff employed at the premises are aware and
understanding of the policies / procedures referred to within and the content of such policies and
procedures and that they carry out their duties in accordance with them. Any necessary and justifiable
deviation from those agreed shall be fully documented within the Premises Daily Register.

The Premises Licence holder shall ensure that a dedicated area is provided for vulnerable patrons (i.e.
through alcohol, drugs isolation, underage, etc.) that have come to the attertion of staff employed at the
premises. This area will be for the safeguarding and appropriate support and first aid (if required) of such
persons.

Drinks shall be served in containers made from non-glassware drinking vessels (e.g. polycarbonate,
toughened glass, or other such material). Note: Weights and measures legislation requires the use of

Page 40
2



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

"stamped glasses" where "meter-measuring equipment" is not in use

All bottled drinks (except wine, Champagne and Spirit bottles) will be decanted into a vessel as
described in the non-glassware drinking vessels (e.g. polycarbonate or other such material) condition
before being givento the customer.

No person shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst in the possession of any drinking vessel or open
glass bottle, whether empty or containing any beverage, other thanto any external area owned or legally
occupied by the Premises Licence Holder.

The door supervisors or staff on duty will operate a means of counting customers in and out so the
capacity limit as detailed within the Fire Regulations is not exceeded at any point.

The Premises Licence holder shall participate in the designated local Pubwatch / Late Night Business
Partnership scheme and ensure that a representative of the licensed premises attend all of the arranged
meetings or such a person has made all reasonable endeavours to attend the arranged meetings.

All members of staff at the premises shall seek "credible photographic proof of age evidence" from any
person who appears to be under the age of 25 years and who is seeking access to the premises or is
seeking to purchase or consume alcohol on the premises. Such credible evidence, which shall include a
photograph of the customer, will include a passport, photographic driving licence, or Proof of Age card
carrying a "PASS" logo.

Persons under the age of 18 years shall only be to the premises when events specffically held for “under
18's” are taking place. Notification of such events shall be provide to the Licensing Authority and the
Force Licensing Officer of Nottinghamshire Police no later than 14 days prior to the event taking place,
and any details requested relating to the event made by any Authorised Officer shall be provided within
7 days of such a request being made.

No person shall be admitted to the premises less than one hour before cessation of the last licensable
activity.

The premises shall be cleared of customers and closed 30 minutes after the conclusion of the last
licensed activity.

Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at all exit points to advise customers to respect the needs of
the local community and of acceptable behaviour in public spaces.

All external doors (save for when persons are entering and leaving premises) and windows at the
premises shall remain closed at all times when regulated entertainment is provided.

Regulated entertainment shall be held internally only and no music or speakers shall be provided to
external areas of the premises.

Noise emanating from the premises as a result of regulated entertainment shall not exceed 40dB(A) as
measured 1 metre from any residential building.

Noise limiters, if requested by the Environmental Health Department, shall be in place at the premises
and shall be set so as not to breach the maximum noise levels laid down at condition 23.

Following any inspection of the premises by an Authorised Officer of Ashfield District Council
Environmental Health Department, any other sound limits may be set by such Officer, and such limits
shall be incorporated within Noise Policy referred to within.

A circuit cut off device shall be fitted to the rear fire door which automatically switches off the sound
system when the doors are opened. This device shall be tested each day prior to entertainment
commencing.

When the hours for licensable activities are extended beyond the standard permitted hours, the
Premises Licence holder shall ensure that the most local Residents Association is notified of such
events.

Page 41
3



THE FIRST POST

OPERATIONAL POLICIES

All Door Supervisors and all Staff are to have read and understood this Policy
document before commencing employment at the venue.

Refresher Training shall be provided to all Door Supervisors and all Staff when
deemed necessary.

All Policies are “Live”, and shall be kept under review and revised as and when
required.

The following Polices are contained within this Policy document:

Policy Name Page Number
CCTV 1
Conditions of Entry 2
Dispersal 3
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) and Vulnerable Persons 4
Noise 5
Queue Management 6
Responsible Service of Alcohol 7
Security Measures 8
Underage Sales and False Identification 9
Acceptable Forms of Identification 10
Challenge “25” 11
Zero Tolerance Drugs 12

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 42



OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 43



CCTV Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives.

. Be switched on and fully operational when licensable activities are being carried
out

. Record for a minimum rolling period of 31 days

. Have a camera covering the entrance which will provide a facial shot of

identification quality

. Have means of copying any footage to another medium as evidence if requested
by the Police or Licensing Authority

. Have a staff member working at all times whilst the licence is in operation that is
able to operate the system and in particular be able to provide copies of any
footage requested by the Police or Licensing Authority

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 44
1



Conditions of Entry Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives.

Persons showing signs of being intoxicated by the influence of alcohol or drugs
shall be refused entry.

Persons displaying inappropriate and / or anti-social behaviour shall be refused
entry.

All persons must provide a valid and in date Government approved Identification
Card, this is inclusive of: Driver’s License (Provisional or Full),Passport, PASS
‘Prove It' Card, International Identification Cards/ National Identification Cards

Persons must adhere to the venues Dress Code.

All persons once admitted to the venue are expected to behave in an acceptable
and appropriate manner. Any person who acts in aninappropriate / anti-social
manner shall be required to leave the premises, and shall not be permitted into the
premises in future.

Persons admitted into the venue consent to a search as part of the Conditions of
Entry. Any person who refuses to be searched will be refused admittance.

Known offenders, persons highlighted by a Responsible Authority or CCTV
Operatives or persons included on the ‘Pub & Club Watch / Late Night Business
Partnership’ will be refused admittance Where appropriate the Door Supervisors
and/ or Duty Manager will report persons refused entry via Radio-link system (if
such a system exists) or by other means to nearby licensed premises and if
applicable to Nottinghamshire Police.

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 45
2



Dispersal Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives and ensure a safe, organised and peaceful dispersal of patrons.

The last entry to the premises will be one hour before the cessation of licensable
activities.

All bars will cease service fifteen minutes before the end of permitted hours to
allow for a reasonable drinking up time and dispersal of customers

Door Supervisors positioned at the main exit shall ensure that no receptacles are
removed from the venue

Door Supervisors positioned at the main exit point are to minimise noise from
customers on exiting the venue. All Door Supervisors are to pro-actively request

that noise be kept to a minimum and that persons stay off of the road

A sufficient number of Door Supervisors and Staff, in high visibility clothing, are to
be positioned along the public footpath outside out the main entrance, ushering
exiting guests away from the venue. Loitering persons will be requested to vacate
immediately

A sufficient number of crowd control barriers are to be placed on the immediate
pavement area outside of the main entrance/ exit of the venue are to be used to
ensure patrons leave the premises in an orderly fashion, limiting persons blocking
public roads

Adequate sighage relating to ‘Respecting the Neighbourhood’ and ‘Keeping Noise
Levels to a Minimum’ will be displayed at the main exit point

DJ’s are to request, via the internal PA System, for customers to leave the venue
quietly, orderly and to respect the neighbourhood

Any persons causing an inordinate amount of disruption or continually refuses to
move from the immediate vicinity of the property are to be called into the ‘Radio
Link' (if such a scheme exists) and a request for Police Officers to attend and
disperse shall be made

The premises shall be cleared of customers and closed no later than 30 minutes
after the last licensed activity

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 46
3



Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) and Vulnerable Persons Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with the
Licensing Objective ‘The Protection of Children from Harm’ and ‘Prevention of Crime &
Disorder'.

As part of the Conditions of Entry the venue is to request an acceptable form of
Government Approved Identification from all patrons. Those who are unable to
provide an accepted form of Identification are to be refused admittance

As part of the Underage Sales and False Identification Policy any form of
identification produced that is suspected of being false, fraudulent or doctored is to
be confiscated and the relevant procedures followed. Any confiscation made is to
be reported through the Radiolink (if such a scheme exists) and to
Nottinghamshire Police so that the person is monitored

Any person who is unable to provide an acceptable form of identification and is
suspected of being under the age of 18 is to be reported through Radiolink (if such
a scheme exists) for monitoring

Any person who is acting in a suspicious manner around persons believed to be
under the age of 18 are to be reported through Radiolink (if such a scheme exists)
for monitoring and to the Police for further investigation

Risk Assessments are to be produced for all events hosted for Under 18s (these
are available upon request)

‘Event Risk Assessment Forms’ are to be submitted to the Police and Licensing
Authority in advance of any event hosted for under 18s with all relevant information

The Management are to liaise with the Police and Licensing Authority on regular
basis (including through schemes such as Pub & Club Watch / Late Night
Business Partnership) and share any relevant intelligence

The venue will have an area dedicated for vulnerable patrons (i.e. through alcohol,
drugs, underage etc.) that come to their attention. This area will be used for their
safeguarding, appropriate suppotrt and first aid, and such persons shall be kept in
this area until a guardian / responsible adult collects them

All vulnerable persons shall be reported through the Radiolink scheme (if such a
scheme exists) and, if the vulnerable person is inimmediate need of assistance to
Nottinghamshire Police

All Staff and Door Supervisors are to receive relevant training

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 47
4



Noise Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives namely ‘The Prevention of Public Nuisance’

The site amplifiers and limiters are to be set at levels by the License Holder and
his / her nominated Sound Engineer to ensure that noise emanating from the
premises as a result of regulated entertainment shall not exceed 40dB(A) as
measured one metre from any residential building. The limiters should be locked
and only the manager or his nominated deputy in his absence shall be able to
access them.

Door Supervisors, Staff and Duty Managers are to regularly monitor and manage
external areas to ensure customers are not causing a disturbance

No drinks are to be taken into the external smoking area after midnight, this is to
discourage persons loitering in these areas

Entertainment shall be held internally only and no music or speakers shall be
provided in external areas of the premises

Where practical, doors are to be fitted with self-closing devices to ensure the
operation of ‘sound lobbies’ where available

Main entrance and exit doors are to be closed at the end of permitted hours.

There is to be ongoing and open communication between the Venue Management
and neighbouring properties where necessary

All windows and doors are to be kept closed (save for the entrance and exit of
staff and patrons) whilst the premisesis open to the public

Routine perimeter checks and ‘listening tests’ are to be made by the License
Holder and documented

Decibel Metre Recordings are to be taken by the License Holder when deemed
appropriate and necessary and recorded in the site Incident Log Book

Bins are to be filled from within the premises where achievable to limit the amount
of noise created, in particular relating to glass, and not taken outdoors between

21:00 hours and 09:00 hours

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 48
5



Queue Management Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives, for the safe queuing of all guests who attend The Last Post in the
effort of minimising potential disruption caused to the neighbourhood.

A sufficient number of crowd control barriers are to be positioned as instructed by
Nottinghamshire Police to allow queuing in an orderly fashion. Barriers are to allow
for the use of the public footpath also

Crowd Barriers are to be adorned with banners carrying messages reminding
patrons to keep noise to a minimum whilst queuing

A sufficient number of Door Supervisors, in high visibility clothing, are to patrol the
gueue ensuring adequate movement within, requesting that noise be keptto a
minimum, persons stay off of the road and that patrons are behaving in an
acceptable manner

Any persons noted as continually contributing to Public Nuisance are to be refused
entry to the Premises

Upon the venue reaching capacity all waiting guests are to be informed of the
expected waiting time from their positionin the queue.

Any persons contributing Crime and Disorder or are noted as being a Public
Nuisance are to be called into the ‘Radio Link' (if such a scheme exists) for and a
request for Police Officers to attend shall be made.

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 49
6



Responsible Service of Alcohol Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives.

. Anyone who appears overly intoxicated shall be asked to leave the premises

. If any member of staff suspects that a customer is intoxicated, they must first
refuse service of intoxicating liquor and must be asked to leave the premises. If
any member of staff is uncertain as to a customer’s sobriety they must raise this
concern with a Manager or Supervisor

. Customer’s sobriety will be verified by Door Supervisors upon entry to the venue.
Any person showing signs of over intoxication will not be admitted entry

. Management and Door Supervisors will make regular checks of the premises to
ensure no customers exhibit the above signs

. “Responsible Service of Alcohol Notice” are to be displayed in prominent areas of
service

. A logbook must be maintained on a daily basis of persons who have been
removed or refused entry from the premises for appearing intoxicated

. All Managers, Staff and Door Supervisors are to remain vigilant at all times

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 50
7



Security Measures Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives

. There shall be one Door Supervisor to every 100 customers (but a minimum of two
Door Supervisors in any event), all individually registered with the Security Industry
Authority and present on the premises between 20.00 hours and up to 30 minutes
after the end of the last licensable activity on any night when the last licensable
activity ends after midnight.

. All staff employed in a security role shall wear high visibility yellow florescent
clothing which clearly identifies them as members of staff

. SIA Registered Door Supervisors duties include adherence to the documented
Policies in place at the premises, and any other duties requested by the Premises
Licence Holder including (but not limited to):

" Upholding the conditions of the venues Fire Risk Assessment including,
where certified, acting in the capacity of a Fire Marshall

" Proactively requesting persons who are deemed intoxicated to vacate the
premises

" Assisting Responsible Authorities where appropriate and necessary

" Reporting of all Incidents to the Duty Manager, Radiolink and in the site
Incident Log Book

" Providing Police and Licensing Authority with witness statements in relation

to any incident that has occurred in or around the venue upon request
" Where certified, provide necessary First Aid assistance

" Protect the premises’ property and report all noticed damage to the Duty
Manager

" Share relevant intelligence and information with colleagues and Responsible
Authorities

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 51
8



Underage Sales and False Identification Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with the
Licensing Objective ‘The Protection of Children from Harm'.

Offences:

. Itis an offence for anyone under the age of 18 to purchase, or attempt to
purchase, alcohol on a Licensed Premises. The maximum fine is £1,000

. A person commits an offence is s/he sells alcohol to an individual under the age of
18. The maximum fine is £5,000

. Itis an offense for a member of staff to knowingly allow persons under the age of
18 to consume alcohol on a Licensed Premises. The maximum fine is £5,000

. The Licensing Authority in conjunction with the Police & Trading Standards
Officers are empowered to send under 18's into licensed premises to attempt
to buy alcohol (subject to certain guidelines being complied with).

. A person charged with an offence has a defence available that they believed the
individual was 18 or over, and they had either taken all reasonable steps to find
out the individual's age or that no one could reasonably suspect from their

appearance that they were under 18

. 'Reasonable steps' means asking the individual for evidence of their age, and that
the evidence would convince a reasonable person. Steps that would be considered
to be ‘reasonable’ include, but are not limited to:

e Take the ID in your hand
e Check the date of birth
e Check the photograph matches the person presenting the ID

e Ensurethe ID is valid (by checking holograms and security features) and in
date
e Askrelevant questions (middle names, address, signatures etc.)

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 52
9



Acceptable Forms of Identification Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives

. As per the venues ‘Conditions of Entry Policy’ acceptable forms of Government
Approved ID are:

" Driver's License (Provisional or Full)

] Passport

= PASS ‘Prove It Card

= International Identification Cards/ National Identification Cards

. All forms of ID presented must be valid and in date

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 53
10



Challenge “ 25" Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with all of the
Licensing Objectives

. As itis extremely difficult to assess age the Venues Policy is to challenge any
person attempting to purchase alcohol that you believe is 25 or under

" When requesting Proof of Age ID, staff shall:

" Be polite and courteous

" Smile and be assertive

" Be confident and use open body language

" Do not intentionally embarrass the person

" If any person becomes aggressive or offended pass the incident on to the

Supervisor or Manager on Duty

*If a member of staff is uncertain whether any form of ID presented to them is
acceptable they aretorefuse service and refer to the Supervisor or Duty Manager

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy before
commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 54
11



Zero Tolerance Drugs Policy

This policy formulates part of the Premises License procedures to assist with the
Licensing Objectives ‘The Prevention of Crime and Disorder’.

The Management and Supervisor Team are to complete certified ‘Drugs
Awareness Courses’

The venue will display relevant notices detailing their Zero Tolerance approach to
Drug use in prominent areas of the venue.

The Management are to liaise with the Police and Licensing Authority on a regular
basis (including through schemes such as Pub & Club Watch / Late Night
Business Partnership)

All Drugs found or seized are to be sealed in an evidence bag and stored in the
site safe. Details of the seizure are to be recorded on a Site Incident Report. The
Police are to be contacted for collection at their earliest convenience

Door Supervisors are to conduct regular checks of the toilets and cubicles

Any person suspected of using or having drugs upon their person must reported to
the Duty Manager, if appropriate a search will be requested and the Police
contacted

All searches are to be carried out by a Responsible Person with the Duty Manager
present. All searches are to take place infront of a CCTV camera

Anyone refusing to be searched on entry will be refused, anyone refusing a search
after being admitted entry will be reported to the Police via any

The Duty Manager will be responsible for handling any confiscated substances
until the Police are available to collect

Staff who commit an offence under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 or who
witnesses such an act on the premises and withhold evidence will be liable to
disciplinary procedures, details of which are outlined in the Company Disciplinary
& Grievance Policy which all employees read prior to commencing employment

Any patrons known to be associated with persons caught in the possession of
illicit/ illegal substances are to be asked to leave the venue (at the Duty Managers
discretion)

Any person suspected of being intoxicated on illicit substances will, when
necessary, be reviewed by an onsite First Aider in a space designated for
‘Vulnerable People’

All Door Supervisors and Staff are to have read and understood this policy
before commencing employment at the venue

OPERATIONAL POLICIES DOCUMENT: THE FIRST POST

Page 55
12



APPENDIX THREE

Notification to Licensing Authority of Representation under Licensing Act 2003

1. Name of Responsible Authority making representation:

a. Your name:

b. Your address:

c. Your phone number:
d. Your e-mail address:

C Ansty
[Senior Licensing Officer, County Licensing, for and on behalf of
the Chief Constable]

Nottinghamshire Police Headquarters
HQ (CJ) Liquor Licensing

Mansfield Police Station

Great Central Road

Mansfield

Nottinghamshire

NG18 2HQ

101 extn 3101039

michelle.whitel039@nottinghamshire.pnn.police.uk
[Contact at County Licensing]

2. Please identify the application you wish to make a representation about.

a. Name and address of application premises:

b. Nature of application:

The First Post

16 Brook Street
Sutton In Ashfield
Nottinghamshire
NG17 1AL

Grant of Premises Licence

3. Which of the licensing objectives does your representation relate to? Please delete

as appropriate 2.

a. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
b. Protection of Children from Harm

Details of the representation(s)

4. Please give details of your representation(s) including details as to why you feel the
application would be unlikely to promote the objective(s) you have ticked above and
including as much evidence as possible in support of your representation. Please
continue on a separate sheet if necessary.

The application is for the grant of a premises licence offering Regulated
Entertainment, Late Night Refreshment and the sale of alcohol on Monday

Pagle 56



to Sunday from 09:00am until 03:00am with opening hours of 09:00am until
03:30am.

The premise is briefly described as a Public House in Section 5 of the
application form. The premise has previously been being used as a
Premier E-Cig shop. It is situated on Brook Street, Sutton in Ashfield near
to the pedestrianized market area. It has businesses on both sides and a
residential flat above and other residential properties close by. There are
also a number of other licensed premises within the vicinity offering sale
of alcohol and regulated entertainment. The agent dealing with application,
Mr Rathore has verbally suggested that the premise will be primarily a gin
and ale bar and not a usual vertical drinking establishment, however there
is no fixed seating marked on the plan to suggest it will operate other than
a vertical drinking establishment.

It is the view of Nottinghamshire Police that there could be provision for a
licensed premises to be within this part of the town offering the sale of
alcohol for on sales, along with regulated entertainment, however, to
ensure the licensing objectives are not undermined, it is vital that specific
safeguards are put in place especially with regard to preventing crime and
disorder and the protection of children from harm, as mentioned within 2.8
of the Councils statement of licensing policy, that the premises do not
have a negative impact on members of the public who live and work within
that area.

Ashfield District Council’s statement of licensing policy states at 2.1 in
exercising their functions under the licensing act 2003, licensing
authorities must have regard to the licensing objectives as set out in
section 4 of the act.

Ashfield District Council’s policy also states at 2.6 the promotion of the
licensing objectives is paramount consideration for the authority.

Some of the information provided within the operating schedule (Section M
of the application form) does relate to safeguards which Nottinghamshire
Police would require in order to ensure the premises promotes the four
licensing objectives in terms of licence conditions, which includes CCTV
operating, and a Challenge 21 age verification policy. However,
Nottinghamshire Police are of the opinion that this application in its
entirety does not promote the licensing objectives, in particular the
prevention of crime and disorder, and will add to the negative impact
already experienced in Sutton Town Centre in respect of the later times
requested for licensable activity to take place, mainly the sale of alcohol.

Nottinghamshire Police would like to see the operating schedule address
important factors such as SlA registered door supervisors to be appointed
at specific times, and for the sale of alcohol and closing time to be reduced
from the proposed time of 3am and 3.30am.

In view of this and the interests of the wider community, it is the opinion of
the Police that the only way that this premises will not have a negative
effect, and will not undermine the licensing objectives, is if the conditions
below are placed upon the premise licence and a reduction in the times
Licensable activity can take place, with a reduction in the time it is to
cease.

Pag8 57



The Police reserve the right to:

bring further evidence of the Licensing Objectives being undermined to any

subsequent panel hearing and to provide live oral evidence to this effect.

5. If you are suggesting that conditions should be attached to any licence granted
please give the wording of the proposed condition(s) and state why you feel they
are necessary and proportionate. Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary.

Two suitably trained and licensed SIA door supervisors shall be on
duty on Friday and Saturday from 21:00 until the premises close when
the premises are engaging in licensable activities past 23:00. A bound
and sequentially paginated book or electronic record containing names,
addresses and full SIA licence number(s) of door supervisors shall be
maintained and kept for a period of twelve months and be available for
inspection by the police or any other authorised person upon request.
This condition may be disapplied by written agreement with the Police 2
working days prior to the date and time of the disapplication and such
written agreement retained at the premises.

A bound and sequentially paginated incident book or electronic record
shall be kept to record all instances of disorder, damage to property
and personal injury at the premises. This book shall be made available
for inspection and copying by the Police or any other authorised
person upon request and all such books shall be retained at the
premises for at least 12 months.

No customers carrying open bottles upon entry shall be admitted to the
premise at any time the premise is open to the public.

Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premise in
open containers save for consumption in any external area provided for
that purpose.

A Challenge 25 scheme shall operate at the premises. Any person who
appears to be under 25 years of age shall not be allowed to purchase
alcohol unless they produce an acceptable form of photo identification.
(e.g. passport, driving licence, Military ID or PASS accredited card).

Nottinghamshire Police would also like to propose the following times for the
requested licensable activity:

Films

Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Plays

Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Indoor Sporting events

Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Page 58



Live Music
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Recorded Music
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Performances of Dance
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Anything of a similar Description
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Late Night Refreshment
Monday — Sunday 2300 — 0130

Supply of Alcohol (on and off)
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Hours open to the Public
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0200

6. Please indicate any parts of the Licensing Authority’s Statement of Policy that you
feel may be relevant to your representation 3,

Indication of those relevant parts will be given in addition to those above, in a
Panel Hearing.

7. Please indicate any parts of the Guidance issued under S 182 of the licensing Act
2003, which you feel may be relevant to your representation “.

Indication of those relevant parts will be given within a Panel Hearing.

8. As you have made a representation the Application may need to be determined at a
hearing of the Licensing Committee or one of its Panels. At this stage would you
intend to attend such a hearing®? Please circle as appropriate.

Yes No

9. If you intend to attend any hearing that may be held it would be helpful at this stage
if you could give an indication as to how long you think you would need to make
your representation(s).

Not Known

Signed: C Ansty, Senior Licensing Officer, County Licensing for and on behalf of the
Chief Constable]

Date: 12™ November 2020

c.c. — Mr Walaiti Rathore, walaiti.rathore@licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk

Pagée1 59



APPENDIX FOUR

| o 9, Memamgbon tohos
ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL / W
S tlon i '
06 NOV 200 - Mo NGIT LET
RECEIVED étﬁ M aw}a n
Corme Cfjetes
W/
nNgl1 8bn.
J6 1510t Aioonoiiy [

CWW,»;MW",/”“MM
. CloSe r
W:::MW pasibe buwatts, o fiur §0 S
ﬂ.&wc (i asres Clusrotn SLliact
M#Wﬁn—m,@w‘mﬁ‘* “
ho wShole wno of fro prewccaco }"”/R"Sa'("
= e GATL A 2 herml
%M&é“’lm . -
Yporem § aierfutey,
Mecugacal Wit

Page 60



APPENDIX FIVE

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



'NOTICE OF REPRESENTATION AND
EVIDENCE BUNDLE BY
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE POLICE:
APPLICATION FOR A GRANT OF A
PREMISE LICENCE AT
FIRST POST
BROOK STREET

SUTTON IN ASHFIELD

DATE: 11™ DECEMBER 2020

iz ,
7 NOTTINGHAMSHIRE
i

T

> POLICE

U PROUD TO SERVE

Page 63



Page 64




Item
Ri\f’i'::;ce Item Page No (s)
applicable
Copy of Notification of Representation to Licensing
Authority s
Copy of Application for Grant of a Premise Licence 5-30
Witness Statement of Inspector Mark Dickson Sutton
e 30-34

District Commander
Witness Statement of Michelle White Licensing 35 _ 45
Enforcement Officer - Police

MWO1 | List of Premises with Terminal Hours 46
Email between W. Rathore and M. White dated

MWO2 | 4741 /2020 R
Email between W. Rathore and M. White dated

MWO3 | 56/11/2020 il
Email between W. Rathore and M. White dated

MWO4 | 44/11/2020 28
Email between W. Rathore and M. White dated

MWOS | 17/11/2020 %5~ 58
Four photographs of premise — external and rear

MWO06 57— 60

yard views

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

POLICE

PROUD TO SERVE Page 65




Page 66



Notification to Licensing Authority of Representation under Licensing Act 2003

1. Name of Responsible Authority making representation:

a. Your name: C Ansty
[Senior Licensing Officer, County Licensing, for and on behalf of
the Chief Constable]

b. Your address: Nottinghamshire Police Headquarters

HQ (CJ) Liquor Licensing
Mansfield Police Station
Great Central Road
Mansfield
Nottinghamshire

NG18 2HQ

Your phone number: 101 extn 3101039

. Your e-mail address: michelle.white1039@nottinghamshire.pnn.police.uk
[Contact at County Licensing]

o o

2. Please identify the application you wish to make a representation about.
a. Name and address of application premises:

The First Post

16 Brook Street
Sutton In Ashfield
Nottinghamshire
NG17 1AL

b. Nature of application: Grant of Premises Licence

3. Which of the licensing objéctNes does your representation relate to? Please dele{e
as appropriate 2.

a. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
b. Protection of Children from Harm

Details of the representation(s)

- 4. Please give details of your representation(s) including details as to why you feel the
application would be unlikely to promote the objective(s) you have ticked above and
including as much evidence as possible in support of your representation. Please
continue on a separate sheet if necessary.

The application is for the grant of a premises licence offering Regulated
Entertainment, Late Night Refreshment and the sale of alcohol on Monday

|

Page 67



to Sunday from 09:00am until 03:00am with opening hours of 09:00am until
03:30am.

The premise is briefly described as a Public House in Section 5 of the
application form. The premise has previously been being used as a
Premier E-Cig shop. It is situated on Brook Street, Sutton in Ashfield near
to the pedestrianized market area. It has businesses on both sides and a
residential flat above and other residential properties close by. There are
also a number of other licensed premises within the vicinity offering sale
of alcohol and regulated entertainment. The agent dealing with application,
Mr Rathore has verbally suggested that the premise will be primarily a gin
and ale bar and not a usual vertical drinking establishment, however there
is no fixed seating marked on the plan to suggest it will operate other than
a vertical drinking establishment.

It is the view of Nottinghamshire Police that there could be provision for a
licensed-premises to be within this part of the town offering the sale of
alcohol for on sales, along with regulated entertainment, however, to
ensure the licensing objectives are not undermined, it is vital that specific
safeguards are put in place especially with regard to preventing crime and
disorder and the protection of children from harm, as mentioned within 2.8
of the Councils statement of licensing policy, that the premises do not
have a negative impact on members of the public who live and work within
that area.

Ashfield District Council’s statement of licensing policy states at 2.1 in
exercising their functions under the licensing act 2003, licensing
authorities must have regard to the licensing objectives as set out in
section 4 of the act.

Ashfield District Council’s policy also states at 2.6 the promotion of the
licensing objectives is paramount consideration for the authority.

Some of the information provided within the operating schedule (Section M
of the application form) does relate to safeguards which Nottinghamshire
Police would require in order to ensure the premises promotes the four
licensing objectives in terms of licence conditions, which includes CCTVY
operating, and a Challenge 21 age verification policy. However,
Nottinghamshire Police are of the opinion that this application in its
entirety does not promote the licensing objectives, in particular the
prevention of crime and disorder, and will add to the negative impact
already experienced in Sutton Town Centre in respect of the later times
requested for licensable activity to take place, mainly the sale of alcohol.

Nottinghamshire Police would like to see the operating schedule address
important factors such as SIA registered door supervisors to be appointed
at specific times, and for the sale of alcohol and closing time to be reduced
from the proposed time of 3am and 3.30am.

In view of this and the interests of the wider community, it is the opinion of
the Police that the only way that this premises will not have a negative
effect, and will not undermine the licensing objectives, is if the conditions
below are placed upon the premise licence and a reduction in the times
Licensable activity can take place, with a reduction in the time it is to
cease.

2

Page 68



The Police reserve the right to:

-]

bring further evidence of the Licensing Objectives being undermined to any

subsequent panel hearing and to provide live oral evidence to this effect.

. 5. If you are suggesting that conditions should be attached to any licence granted
please give the wording of the proposed condition(s) and state why you feel they
are necessary and proportionate. Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary.

o]

Two suitably trained and licensed SIA door supervisors shall be on _
duty on Friday and Saturday from 21:00 until the premises close when

-the premises are engagding in licensable activities past 23:00. A bound

and sequentially paginated book or electronic record containing names,
addresses and full SIA licence number(s) of door supervisors shall be
maintained and kept for a period of twelve months and be available for
inspection by the police or any other authorised person upon request.
This condition may be disapplied by written agreement with the Police 2
working days prior to the date and time of the disapplication and such
written agreement retained at the premises.

A bound and sequentially paginated incident book or electronic record
shall be kept to record all instances of disorder, damage to property
and personal injury at the premises. This book shall be made available
for inspection and copying by the Police or any other authorised
person upon request and all such books shall be retained at the
premises for at least 12 months.

No customers 6arrying open bottles upon entry shall be admitted to the
premise at any time the premise is open to the public.

Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premise in
open containers save for consumption in any external area provided for
that purpose.

A Challenge 25 scheme shall operate at the premises. Any person who
appears to be under 25 years of age shall not be allowed to purchase
alcohol unless they produce an acceptable form of photo identification.
(e.g. passport, driving licence, Military ID or PASS accredited card).

Nottinghamshire Police would also like to propose the-following times for the
requested licensable activity: ’

Films

Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Plays

Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Indoor Sporting events

Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Page 69



Live Music
Monday — Sunday 0200 — 0130

..Recorded Music
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Performances of Dance
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0130

Anything of a similar Description
Monday — Sunday 0200 — 0130

Late Night Refreshment
Monday — Sunday 2300 — 0130

Supply of Alcohol.(on and off)
Monday ~ Sunday 0900 — 0130

Hours open to the Public
Monday — Sunday 0900 — 0200

. Please indicate aﬁy parts of the Licensing Authority’s Statement of Policy that you
feel may be relevant to your representation *.

Indication of those relevant parts will be given in addition to those above, in a
Panel Hearing.

. Please indicate any parts of the Guidance issued under S .182 of the licensing Act
2003, which you feel may be relevant to your representation *.

Indication of those relevant parts will be given within a Panel Hearing.

. As you have made a representation the Application may need to be determined at a
hearing of the Licensing Committee or one of its Panels. At this stage would you
intend to attend such a hearing®? Please circle as appropriate.

Yes No

. If you intend to attend any hearing that may be held it would be helpful at this stage
if you could give an indication as to how long you think you would need to make

your representation(s).

Not Known

Signed: C Ansty, Senior Licensing Officer, County Licensing for and on behalf of the

Chief Constable] :

Date: 12™ November 2020

c.c. — Mr Walaiti Rathore, walaiti.rathore@licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk

4

Page 70



s,

- Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals, In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

~ You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/'We Trebor Deeas Ltd

(Tnsert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the
relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

The First Post

16 Brook Street
Sutton in Ashfield
Nottingham

Post town ' Postcode NG17 1AL

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £7,600

Part 2 - Applicant details
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * [  please complete section (A)
b) a person other than an individual *

i asalimited company/limited liability ¢ please complete section (B)
partnership
ii  asapartnership (other than limited liability) [ ]  please complete section (B)

iii  as an unincorporated association or [] please complete section (B)
iv  other (for example a statutory corporation) [] please complete section (B)
c) arecognised club [] please complete section (B)

d)  acharity [] please complete section (B)

Page 71




e) the proprietor of an educational establishment please complete section (B)

) a health service body please complete section (B)

000

g)  aperson who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

please complete section (B)

ga)  aperson who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part [ ]  please complete section (B)
1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within
the meaning of that Parf) in an independent
hospital in England

h)  the chief officer of police of a police force in [0 please complete section (B)
England and Wales .

* If you are applying as a person described in (&) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one box
below):

T am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the

premises for licensable activities; or ]
I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or ]
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative ]

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

) , Other Title (for

Mr [] Mrs [ Miss [ ] Ms [ example, Rev)
Surname First names '
Date of birth Tam 18 years old orover [ |  Please tick yes
Nationality
Current residential
address if different from
premises address
Post town Postcode

Daytimé’ contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see .
note 15 for information)

Page 72




SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

Other Title (for
example, Rev)

Mr [ MISD Miss [ Ms []

Surname First names
Date of birth I am 18 years old or over []  Please tick yes
Nationality -

‘Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see
note 15 for information)

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name

Trebor Deeas Litd

Address
92 Rolleston Drive

Arnold
Nottingham

NG5 7IP

Registered number (where applicable)

09039437

Page 73




Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)
Limited Company

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Part 3 Operating Schedule

. - . DD MM YYYY
‘When do you want the premises licence to start? [alSTAlR] T T [ |

If you wish the licence to be valid 61113/ for a limited period, when DD MM YYYY
do you want it to end? [T TTTTI1T1]1

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

Public House

If 5,000 or more people are expected to aftend the premises at any L
one time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) Please il thet

apply
a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) X
b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) X
¢) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) : <

[]

d)  boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

X

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box )

"Page 74




f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if twkmg yes, fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), () or (g)

h)  (ifticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

In all cases complete boxes K, I and M

Page 75

X X

}x{

m

X



10

A

Plays Will the performance of a play take place v
Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors X
timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors

Day | Start | Finish Both [l

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read

guidarnce note 5)

Fri 09:00 | 03:00

Sat | 09:00 | 03:00

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for

the performance of plays at different times to those listed in the

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard

times on the day when British summertime comences.

From the standard start timing on 315 December to the standard start

time on the 1% JTanuary.

Page 76




B

Films Wil the exhibition of films take place indoors _
Standard days and or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors X
timings (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Biitdians

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4

Occasional exhibition of films.

| Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please
read guidance note 5)

Fri 09:00 | 03:00

Sat 09:00 | 03:00

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

From the standard start timing on 315 December to the standard start
time on the 1%t January.

Page 77

11



1.2

C

Indoor sporting events

Standard days and

timings (please read

guidance note 7)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)

Occasional games usually played on licensed premises.

Day Start Finish

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00

Tue 09:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please
read guidance note 5)

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri : 3

Ul | a0 If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard

times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sat 09:00 | 03:00 | From the standard start timing on 31% December to the standard start
time on the 1% January.

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

Page 78




D

Boxing or wrestling Will the boxing or wrestﬁxig entertainment

entertainments take place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors [

Standard days and please tick (please read guidance note 3)

timings (please read

guidance note 7) Outdoors

Day | Start | Finish Both

‘| Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed
in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 79

13



14

E
Live music Will the performance of live music take place -
Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors ]

timings (please read

guidance note 7)

(please read guidance note 3)

Outdoors ]
Day | Start | Finish Both Il
Mon | 09:00 | 03:00 | Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Occasional unamplified and amplified music by various artists/groups.
Tue | 09:00 | 03:00
Wed | 09:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 5)
Thur | 09:00 | 03:00
Fri 09:00 | 03:00 | Nonstandard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
. the performance of live music at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
Sat . :
090 | D3:00 If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when Buitish summertime comences.
Sun 09:00 | 03:00 | From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start

time on the 1% January.

Page 80




ey s

F

Recorded music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish

Will the playing of recorded music fake place -
indoors ok outdoors or both — please tick Indoors
(please read guidance note 3)
Qutdoors ]
Both ]

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Wed | 09:00° | 03:00

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
(please read guidance note 5)

Fri 09:00 | 03:00

Sat 09:00 | 03:00

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

From the standard start timing on 31%* December to the standard start
time on the 15t January.

Page 81

15



16

G

Performances of dance
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish

Will the performance of dance take place A
indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors X
(please read guidance note 3)
Outdoors Il
Both ]

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Occasional performance of dance by various artists/groups.

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

Thur | 09:00 | 03:00

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please
read guidance note 5)

Fri 09:00 | 03:00

Sat 09:00 | 03:00

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for

the performance of dance at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

From the standard start timing on 315t December to the standard start
time on the 1% January. ’

Page 82




H

‘ Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or

(® :

Standard days and
timings (please read

guidance note 7)

Please give a déscription of the type of entertainment you will be
providing ' '

Day | Start

Finish

Mon | 09:00

03:00

Will this entertainment take place indoors or | Indoors

outdoors or both — please tick (please read
guidance note 3) Outdoors

L1 X

O

Both

Tue | 09:00

03:00 -

Wed | 09:00

03:00

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Thur | g9:00

03:00

Fri | g9:00

03:00

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similax
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read

guidance note 5)

Sat
09:00

03:00

Sun
09:00

03:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the entertainment of a similax description to that falling within

(e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

From the standard start timing on 31% December to the standard start
time on the 1%t January.

Page 83

17



18

I

Late night refreshment

Will the provision of late night refreshment

Standard days and take place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors L

timings (please read please tick (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Chitdoos ]

Day | Start | Finish Both [X]

Mon | 23:00 | 03:00 | Please give further details heie (please read guidance note 4)

Tue | 23:00 | 03:00

Wed | 23:00 | 03:00 | State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refrestoment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur | 23:00 | 03:00

Fri 23:00 | 03:00 | Nonstandard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

Sat | 23:00 | 03:00 | "
If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sun - 123:00 | 03:00
From the standard start timing on 31 December to the standard start
time on the 1% January.

Page 84




J

Supply of aleohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption é)n the

Standard days and — please tick (please read guidance note 8) premises L]

timings (please read

guidance note 7) Off the ]
; premises

Day | Start | Finish Both X

Mon | 09:00 | 03:00 | Stateany seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read

guidance note 5)

Tue | 09:00 | 03:00

Wed | 09:00 | 03:00

Thur | 99:00 | 03:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for

Fri 09:00 | 03:00

the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
times on the day when British summertime comences.

Sat 09:00 | 03:00 | From the standard start timing on 31% December to the standard start

time on the 1% January.

Sun | 09:00 | 03:00

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as

designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the

checklist at the end of the form):

Name Mr Saeed Rafique

Date of birth 08/05/1971

Address

12 Kirtle Close
Noftingham

Postcode NGS 5SHB

Personal licence number (if known)
148478

Issuing licensing authority (if known)

Nottingham City Council

Page 85

19



20

K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activitieé, other entertainment or

matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

As far as the applicant is aware none of the proposed activities should give rise to concern in

respect of children.

L

Hours premises are State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)
open to the public

Standard days and

timings (please read

guidance note 7)

Day Start | Finish
Mon | 09:00 | 03:30
Tue [ 09:00 | 03:30
Wed | 09:00 | 03:30
Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open
; to the public at different times from those listed in the column on
Thur 1 09:00 | 03:30 | the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
If applicable, an additional hour to the standard and non-standard
Fri 09:00 | 03:30 | times on the day when British summertime comences.
From the standard start timing on 315 December to the standard start
i j 3
Sat 09:00 | 0330 time on the 1% January
Sun -1 09:00 | 03:30

Page 86




M

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

2) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)

The premises will operate in accordance with all relevant legislation.

The premises will liaise and co-cooperate with the Responsible Authorities.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

A CCTV system with recording equipment must be installed and maintained at the premises and
operated with cameras in positions agreed with the Police. All recordings used in conjunction
with CCTV must:

Be of evidential quality in all lighting conditions;

Indicate the correct time and date; and

Be retained for a period of 31 consecutive days.

¢) Public safety

The premises will operate in accordance with all relevant legislation which promotes the
prevention of public safety objective. For example, the Health & Safety and Food Safety

legislation

The premises will liaise and co-operate with the Responsible Authorities.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

The premises will operate in accordance with all relevant legislation which promotes the
prevention of public nuisance objective. For example, Environmental Protection Act 1990.

Arrangements for the storage and disposal of refuse will not cause a nuisance.

The premises will liaise and co-operate with the Responsible Authorities.

Page 87

21



22

e) The protection of children from harm

A Challenge 21 scheme musﬁ)ﬁerate at the premises. Any person who appears to be under 21
years of age must not be served alcohol unless they produce an acceptable form of identification
(passport, photo driving licence, Military Identity card or PASS accredited card).

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

@ T have made or enclosed payment of the fee. X
© T have enclosed the plan of the premises.
© T have sent copies of this application and the plan-to responsible authorities and others ]
where applicable.
@ T have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be designated 5]
premises supervisor, if applicable. =
® I understand that I must now advertise my application. X
o T understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected. X
®  [Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not a
limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I have
included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom or
my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work checking service ]

(please read note 15).

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A YALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

o [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a

Declaration partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I

Page 88




am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the

preventing me from doing worlk relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I cease to
be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

e The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work
relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her
proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to work
check using the Home Office online right to work checking service
which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15)

entitlement to live and worlk in the UK (or if I am subject to a condition |

Signature L’L (Q/‘;SVLS LC{)L/Q (fc:m guﬁk—f}iﬂ (.‘4/)

Date 15 Qctober 2020

Capacity Authorised Agent

For joint applications, signature of 2" applicant or 2" applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please
state in what capacity. .

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with
this application (please read guidance note 14)

‘Walaiti Rathore

Licensing Law Consultancy
3 The Triangle

NG2 Business Park

Queens Drive

Post town | Nottingham Postcode | NG2 1AE

Telephone number (if any) [ 0115784 3822

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

walaiti rathore@licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk

Page 89

23



24

Notes for Guidance

= e

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will
be and its proximity to the premises, ‘

2. Interms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

. 0

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such
screening abides by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestlin g between
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event,

Live music: no licence permission is required for:

o aperformance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, on any premises.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

« o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (i) a
school, or (jii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. *

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,ina
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for
the premises. .

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or

Page 90



10.
11.
12,
13.
14.

15.

25

(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.

o  Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, with no limit on audience size for:

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local
authority;

o any enfertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health
care provider where the entertainment is prov1ded by or on behalf of the
health care provider;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience,
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been Jocated on the same site for
more than 28 consecutive days.

Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors
may include a tent).

For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified
or unamplified.

For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during
the summer months.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on 10nge1 ona
partlcular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details fm the days of the
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the
premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the
premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please
tick ‘both’.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to
the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless
of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, {ilms for restricted age groups or the presence of
gaming machines.

Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

‘Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agent
must sign the application form.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicanis and applications
from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a paﬁnershlp who is

resident in the UK who:
e does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or

Page 91



e is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity.

e,

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017
will become invalid if the holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not
subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be
certified), or 2) by providing their ‘share code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry
out a check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below).

Documents which demonsirate entitlement to work in the UK

o An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies
having the right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the !
passport to copy].

o  An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a
person named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

o A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the
Home Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

o A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a
national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

e A current Biometric Inmigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by
the Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

e A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration
control, is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or
has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

o A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely
in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name jssued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

o A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination
with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Tnsurance number
and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

o A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or
Ireland when produced in combination with an official document giving the

Page 92



21

person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and
is currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder
from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by
the Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently
stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a
national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family
member of such a national or who has derivative rights or residence.

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the
Home Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may
stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the
holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity when
produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent
National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a
previous employer.

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office
under regulation 18(3) or 20(2) of the Immigyation (European Economic Area)
Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state
or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative
rights of residence. '

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their
permission to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office
acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or reasonable evidence that the
person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration decision,
such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in the UK including:

o evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,

o evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family
member — e.g. a marriage cerlificate, civil partmership certificate or birth
certificate, and

o evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of
permanent residence in the UK or is one of the following if they have been
in the UK for more than 3 months:

Page 93



28

@ working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the
employer,

(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, iffvdices, or audited accounts with a
bank,

(ii)  studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence
of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially
independent must also provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and any
family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private

. medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or $3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided:

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;

(iif) any page containing the holder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in
the UK and is permitted to work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to wotk will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve
us checking your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share
information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you
have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative fo providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may
demonstrate their right to work by allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with
the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service,
applicants should include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon
accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the
applicant’s date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority to
carry out the check,

In oxder to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the
applicant is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition
preventing them from doing work relating to the cartying on of a licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have
an immigration status that can be checked online. The Home Office online right to work
checking service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order
to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should
submit copy documents as set out above.

Page 94



Consent of individual to being specified as premises supervisor

Mr Saeed Rafique

[full name of prospective premises supervisor]

of

12 Kirtle Close
Nottingham

NG8 5HB

[home address of prospective prentises supervisor]

hereby confirm that I give my consent to be specified as the designated premises supervisor in
relation to the application for :

New Premises Licence

[type of application]

by
Trebor Deeas Lid

[name of applicant]

relating to a premises licence
[number of existing licence, if any]

for

The First Post

16 Brook Street
Sutton in Ashfield
Nottingham

NG17 1AL

[name and address of premises to which the application relates]

Page 95

29




30

and any premises licence to be granted or varied in respect of this application made by

~ - Trebor Deeas Ltd

[name of applicant]

‘concernjng the supply of alcohol at

The First Post
16 Brook Street
Sutton in Ashfield

Nottingham

NG17 1AL

[name and address of premises to which application relates]

Ialso confirm that I am entitled to work in the United Kingdom and am applying for, intend to
apply for or currently hold a personal licence, details of which I set out below.

Personal licence number
148478

[insert personal licence number, if any]

Personal licence issuing authority

Nottingham City Council

- [insert name and address and telephone mumber of personal licence issuing authority, if any]

Sl A | /d ‘M‘gﬂ/
N/

Name (please print) Mr Saeed Rafique

Date 05" October 2020

Page 96



ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BY CONTRACTOR.

SMOKE DETECTOR
-@— EMERGENCY LIGHTING
=

& FIRE ALARM SOUNDER

FIRE ALARM BREAK POINT

PB PANIC BAR
FD30 30MIN FIRE DOCR
SC SELF CLOSER

FE] FIRE EXIT SIGNS TO BS5493PT1

FIRE ALARM PANEL

External Yard

31

Page 97

Entrance

Rev  Description Dale By
Dwe TITLE FLOOR PLAN
THE FIRST PosT
16 BrRoOK STREET
SUTTON-IN-ASHFIELD
NoTTS
NGI7 IAL
Client A RAFlaUE
SCALE l:100@AL
DaTE SEPT '20
DRAWING No.  posT-0l REV
Issue PLANNING

Coprlion




32

~ Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 98



MG11 2015

| RESTRICTED (when complete) |

WITNESS STATEMENT
CJ Act 1967, 5.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3) (a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.7

URN
Statement of:  Mark Antony DICKSON
Age if under (if over 18 insert ‘over
18: Over 18 18) Occupation:  Police Inspector 3794

This statement (consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if it is-tendered in evidence, | shall be
liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated anything which | know to be false or do not
believe to be true.

26" of November
Signature; V. Dickson Date: : . 2020

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear)

| am a Police Inspector with Nottinghamshire Police and my current role is that
of District Commander for Ashfield, this includes Hucknall, Kirkby in Ashfield, Sutton in
Ashfield areas, including their town centres.

As a police officer | am fully conversant with the issues of crime and anti-social
behaviour that have been, and continue to be, addressed by partners, stakeholders, the
community and those within the policing family.

As the District Commander | am responsible for managing the policing response
to crime and disorder within the district. This includes identifying crime trends and
working with partners across the community safety partnership to set policing priorities.
These priorities are set by analysing police incidents and intelligence on a daily basis
and compéring these with concerns regularly raised by the local 'éommunity. Itis my aim
to set policing strategies that help Nottinghamshire Police to deliver a service that works
for local people, with my primary focus being to keep people safe. As a result | have an

interest in the operation of all the licensed premises within in the district, barticularly

Signature: M. Dickson Signature witnessed by:

MG11 2015 _____RESTRICTED (when complete)
Page 99

33



34

MG11(£)-2001

Continuation of Statement of: Mark Antony Dickson Page No 2 of 3

those where the sale of alcohol contributes to the high levels of crime, disorder, anti-

.| social behaviour and public nuisance that exists within that and adjacent communities.

| have been made aware than an application has been submitted for The First
Post public house, 16 Brook Street, Sutton in Ashfield. This premise is on the edge of
Sutton in Ashfield town centre, with residential areas close by.

* Sutton in Ashfield does not currently have the infrastructure to support
intoxicated customers beyond 2am, and | understand there is no intention for this to be
arranged to accompany this application. There are no direct transport Iinkg to enable
customers to get home safely, no night time guardians that have been so valuable in
Nottingham City Centre and Mansfield town centre.

Itis my view, that if this application were granted, there would be intoxicated
and therefore often vulnerable people in the town centre with no support, creating the
opportunity for nuisance, crime anéi disorder.

Such incident would create significant policing challenges and demands for the
local police‘. Sutton in Ashfield has no dedicated night time econor‘ny policing team and
there is no local infrastructure of local support, such as Street Marshalls/Pastors.

| have serious concerns that the granting of the application will:

a) have a negative effect on the community.

b) have a negative impact on the already high levels of anti-social behaviour,

crime, disorder and nuisance; and

c) undermine what we and our partners are trying to achieve.

Sutton town centre traditionally has a high rate of crime, including anti-social
behaviour, public order and violence. Whilst this has reduced during the COVID
pandemic, we need to be mindful of the longer term impacts, especially when normality

resumes. Should the venue arrange for adequate door security staffing and seek to

Signature: M. Dickson Signature witnessed by:

MG11 2015

Page 100



35

MG11()-2001

Continuation of Statement of: Mark Antony Dickson Page No 3 of 3

close at similar times as other premises in the area, these risks would be mitigated

somewhat. L )

Signed - M.DICKSON

Signature: M. Dickson Signature witnessed by:
MG11 2015 _RESTRICTED (when complete)

Page 101



36

Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 102




w

_RESTRICTED (when complete) | - gy

‘ WITNESS STATEMENT
CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3) (a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1

URN

Statementof  Michelle White
Licensing Enforcement

Age if under 18; over 18  (ifover 18 insert ‘over 18)  Occupation:  Officer

This statement (consisting of 11 pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be
liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated anything which | know to be false or do not
believe to be true. .

Signature: Michelle White Date:r 27/11/2020

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded | (supply witness details on rear)

1. 1 am a Police Licensing Officer for Nottinghamshire Police based at Mansfield Police
Station. My role is to monitor incidents and liaise with Designated Premises
Supervisors (DPS), Premises Licence holders, door supervisors and partner
agencies to work in partnership to reduce alcohol related violence and disorder
incidents within licensed premises. | have been employed in this role since
September 2020, previous to this role | worked for a Local Authority in their
Licensing Department. . |

2. | make this statement in respect of a notice of representation that was submitted
by Nottinghamshire Police on 12" November 2020 in relation to an application for
the grant of a premise licence known as The First Post, at 16 Brook Street Sutton
in Ashfield Nottinghamshire NG17 1AL. "

3. On 15" October 2020 | was made éware of the application for a new premises
licence for The First Post, 16 Brool‘< Street Sutton in Ashfield Nottinghamshire
NG17 1AL. On reading the application | noted the following: .

e The appli't‘z-e{ﬁon was in the name of Trebor Deas Ltd

Signature: _Michelle White Signature witnessed by:

MG112045 - RESTRICT:ET: (2hih complete)



38

MGI11(t)-20

Continuation of Statement of: ~ Michelle White Page No 2 of 11

| The First Post is located on the outskirts of Sutton Town Centre; it is situated on Brook

o The proposal was to carry on a business which involves the use of the
premises for licensable activities.

o The type of business is for a public house.

o The proposed opening hours of the premises are Monday to Sunday 09:00
— 03:3()' with non-standard timings on all licensable activities of an
additionaﬂl hour to the standard and non-standard time onAthe day when
British summertime commences. Also from the standard start time on 31%
December to the standard start time on the 1% January

o Sale of alcohol is proposed on Monday to éunday 09:00 — 03:00

o Plays is proposed on Monday to Sunday 09:00 — 03:00

o Films is proposed on Monday to Sunday 09:00 — 03:00

o Indoor Sporting Events is proposed on Monday to Sunday 09:00 — 03:00

o Live Music is proposed on Monday to Sunday 09:00 — 03:00

o Recorded music is proposed on Monday to Sunday 09:00 ~ 03:00

o Performance of Dance is proposed on Monday to Sunday 09:00 —03:00

e Anything of a similar description is proposed on Monday to Sunday 09:00 —
03:00

e Late Night Refreshment is proposed on Monday to Sunday 23:00 — 03:00

Street, Sutton in Ashfield near to the pedestrianized market"area. [t has businesses on
both sides, a residential flat above and other residential properties close by. Sutton has
a moderately busy night time economy; this accommodates a number of other licenced

premises offering sale of alcohol and regulated entertainrhent within the vicinity.

Signature: Michelle White Signature witnessed by:

RESTRICTED (whe

MG11 v2.0 2010 TEST 2 H] complete)




MG11(1)-20

Continuation of Statement of: Michelle White Page No 3 of 11

Currently the latest live licence in Sutton Town Centre belongs to The.Nags Head Public
House on Low Street and is the nearest licensed venue to this premise. The other
licensed premises within the vieinity have closing times varying between midnight and
01:00 hours. The concerns | have should the application be granted in its entirety is the
impact to the immediate area. | foresee a rise in incidents of crime and disorder, noise
accumulating from the premises and the patrons using this venue and patrons being
unable able to leave the area effectively. Nottinghamshire Police are of the opinion that
the application is lacking in detail on the precise nature of the proposed activities which
would help to alleviate concerns from interested:parties and how the business will
promote the licensing objectives. The plan included with the application shows an
external yard but it has not been made clear the intention of use for this area. If it is to
be used as an external smoking area, there will need to be measures in place to
prevent this causing a nuisance or disturbance which has not been addressed within the
application. If this area is not going to be used by the public, there will be no provisions
for an outdoor smoking area which would lead us to believe that patrons will be smoking
on the front of the premises which is directly on to the pavement. The agent dealing with
application, Mr Rathore has verbally suggested that the premise will be primarily a gin
and ale bar and ___not a usual vertical drinking establishment, howeve[ there is no fixed
seating marked on the plan to suggest it will operate other than a vertical drinking
establishment.
| produce a list of licensed premises within the v-icinity including their terminal times for
your information as exhibit MW01 |
4. As aresult of this applicaﬁoﬁ to object to the grant of a premise licence | have |
reviewed all Police interactions with the premises since the application was received

on 15" October 2020 to 25" November 2020.

Signature: Michelle White Signature witnessed by:
_RESTRICTED vher: complete)

MG11 v2.0 2010 TEST 2+ ;



40

MG11{£)-20

Continuation of Statement of: Michelle White : Page No 4 of 11

Police Interactions with the applicant’s solicitor on behalf of the applicant

5.  On 4" November 2020 at 13:22 hours | contacted by email the applicant’s
solicitor, Mr Walaiti Rathore of Licencing Law Consultancy, 3 The Triangle, NG2
Business Park, Queens Drive, Nottingham. NG2 1AE. | refer to this as exhibit
MWO2.

6. After reviewing the application, the local area and other licensed premises within
the vicinity -have concerns regarding the operating hours of the premise. All
other licensed premises within this market place terminal hour is around 02:00
hours and | would expect any new applications in 'tha.t area to coincide with this
timing. Historically, when there was a licensed venue on/ or close to the market
place, the area suffered higher than normal levels of ASB and disorder, therefore
to avoid these issues | suggested amending the times to be 1:00am for the last
sale of alcohol, with closing up at 01:30am.

7. Nottinghamshire Police welcome variation applications to extend opening hours
of premises once the premises licence holder has demonstrated by the licence
holder they can operate safely, responsibly and within the law at all times.

The purpose of the email dated 4" November 2020 to Mr Rathore was to explain
these concerns. | requested reducing the operating hours to 01:00 hours for the sale
of alcohol, with closing at 01:30 hours. Further to this, to propose conditions which
would be placed upon the premises licence. These were not too dissimilar from the
information that was supplied within the operating schedule within the application.
The conditions | proposed were:
a) A CCTV system with recording equipment shall be installed and recorded on the
plan appended to the licence. The system shall be installed prior-to the premises

carrying out licensable activities and maintained in accordance with the system.

Signature: Michelle White Signature witnessed by:
__ RESTRICTED (when complete)
- CA . C ' .

MG11v2.0 2010 TEST2 |, |8




MG11(1)-20

Continuation of Statement of’ Michelle White ' Page No 5ofll

All recordings used in conjunction with CCTV shall:

o be of evidential quality

o Cover the point of sale,.and entrance and exit

o Indicate the time and date

o be retained for a period of 31 days

o Sufficient staif wi!l be trained to use the system

. o .The original images will be made available for-inspection immediafely

upon the request of Police officers, or other authorised officers.

o Copies of recordings shall be provided in a format which can be viewed on
readily available equipment without the need for specialist software.

b) All members of staff shall be fully trained in the retail sale of alcohol. The {fraining
shall be ongoing and each member of staff shall be reviewed every six months.
All details of the level of training shall be recorded in a bound and sequentially
paginated book or electronic record. This information shall be made available for
inspection and copying by the Police or any other authorised person on request
and all such books shall be retained at the premises for at least 12 months.

c) Two suitably trained and licensed SIA door supervisors shall be on duty on
Friday and Saturday Qvening from 21:00 until the premises close. A bound and
sequentially paginated book or electronic record confaining names, addresses
and full SIA licenhce number(s) of door superv[sors shall be maintained and kept
for a period of twelve months and be available .for inspection by the police or any
other authorised person upon request.

This condition may be disappliéd by written agreement with the Police af least 1
fo 2 working days prior to the date and time of the disapplication and such written

agreement retained at the premises.

Signature: Michelle White Signature witnessed by:

VPR eI . - RESTRICTE ~vhon compet_e) s




MG11(t)-20

42 Continuation of Statement of: Michelle White Page No 6ofl1

d) A bound and sequentially paginated incident book or electronic record shall be
kept to record all instances of disorder, damage to property and personal injury at
the premises. This Book shall be mad;; é;véilable for inspection and co,t;j/ing by

“the Police or any other authorised person upon request.and all such books shall
be retained at the premises for at least 12 months.

e) No customers carrying open bottles upon entry shall be admitted fo thé premise
at any time fhe premise is open to the public.

f) Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premise in open
containers save for consumption in any external area provided for that purpose.

g) A Challenge 25 scheme shall operate at the premises. Any person who appears
to be under 25 years of age shall not be allowed to purchase alcohol unless they
produce an acceptable form of photo identification. (e.g. passport, driving licence,
Military ID or PASS accredited card).

The conditions that Nottinghamshire Police wishes to impose are in accordance with

this policy, reflect the local Crime Prevention strategies and are selected from an

agreed pool of conditions used by all authorities across Nottinghamshire.

These conditions are a direct link with the premise and applicant to the licensing

objectives, the conditions for CCTV and door supervision will ensure the premises

are able to manage crime and disorder effectively and the condition for challenge 25

will ensure the protection of children from harm.

8. On 6™ November 2020 at 12:39 hours Mr Rathore contacted me via telephone in
relation to my email dated 4" November 2020 containing the proposed conditions.
We discussed the proposed conditions and how | feel these are required for this
type 01; }ofemise in this area with the times requested. Mr Rathore verbally agreed

with the majority of the conditions but was mindful of the cost implications. Further

Signature: Michelle White Signature witnessed by:
MG11v2.02010 TEST 2 _ RESTRICTED (when complete) = -
. F Ayt UG




Mqul.%-ZO
Continuation of Statement of: Michelle White PageNo 7of11

to our call | received an email from Mr Rathore on 6" November 2020 at 13:27
outlining our discussion and confirming his position. Mr Rathore expressed
concerns to me regarding the cost to-the business in relation to use of door
supervisors on such a small premise. Mr Rathore provided information on the
current climate and the effect the pandemic is having on licensed premises. He
made comment to the fact we are facing an unprecedented time for all and there
have been.suggestions that local authorities and the police should be taking a
pragmatic approach to licensing matters currently affecting all our licensed
premises.

However there have been no amendments to the licensing objectives and what we
must consider appropriate, proportionate, and necessary measures to uphold these
objectives.

Nottinghamshire Police have a duty of care to protect the public from harm caused
by people drinking to excess within the licensed premises and as such we feel the
conditions being imposed are in line with the Licensing Act 2003. Nottinghamshire
Police are keen to support new businesses and will make compromises wherever
possible therefore | advised Mr Rathore | would liaise with Kate Ansty the Senior
Licensing Officer and contact him again.

| produce an email as exhibit MWO03 for your reference.

9. On 11" November 2020 at 09:43 | sent an email to Mr Rathore with some amended
proposals after speaking with the Senior Licensing Officer and taking Mr Rathores
comments into consideration. Having been mindful to the current situation with the
pandemic, | further compromised with Mr Rathore and agreed additional
amendments to the already proposed conditioris. In this émail | have asked for the

premises to close at 02:00 hours with the last sale of alcohol at 01:30 hours. | also

Signature: Michelle White __ Signature witnessed by:

__RESTRICTED {wiizn complete) ' |

© MGI1v2.02010 TEST 2




MG11(t)-20

i Continuation of Statement of: Michelle White Page No 8 of11

agreed to his request for non-standard timings and to amend the age verification
policy from Challenge 25 to Challenge 21. The email also outlined an amended |
7 version of the door supervisor condition which Nottinghamshire Police believe will
be vital to uphold the licensing objectives. The condition is as follows:
Two suitably trained and licensed SIA door supervisors shall be on duty on Friday
and Saturday from 21:00 until the premises close when the premises are engaging
in licensable activities past 23:00 hours. A bound and sequentially paginated book or
electronic record containing names, addresses and full SIA licence number(s) of
door supetvisors shall be maintained and kept for a period of twelve months and be
available for inspection by the police or any other authorised person upon request.
This condlition may be disapplied by written agreement with the Police two working
days prior fo the date and time of the disapplication and such written agreement
retained at the premises. |
Nottinghamshire Police are fully supportive of well managed premises and give
app]ican{s the opportunity in their initial licence period to demonstrate their
commitment to providing a positive impact to the community and successful
strategies, policies and procedures. If the venue demonstrates the use of best
practice, works in partnership with agencies the applicant is welcome to apply for a
variation of their licence to remove conditions they feel are burdensome or having a
detrimental effect on the business. | have explained this verbally to the applicant

during these negotiations. | produce an email as exhibit MW04

10. On 12" November 2020 at 17:02 hours, | submitted a notice of representation to

the licensing section, of Ashfield District Council due to Mr Rathore and | being

times of licensable activities. Within this document are suggestions of times that

Signature: Michelle White __ Signature witnessed by:

RESTRICTED (when somplete)

" MG11v2.0 2010 TEST 2




MG11(5)-20

Continuation of Statement of: Michelle White Page No 9 of 11

Nottinghamshire Police are of the opinion will not undermine the licensing
objectives, along with the suggestion of conditions that would complement the -

contents of the operating schedule completed. :

11. On 17™ November 2020 at 15:50 | received an email from Mr Rathore in reply to
my email dated 11™ November. Mr Rathore gave details of the current upheaval
being experienced by the licensing trade due to Covid 19 Pandemic and reiterated
previous points he had made. | am of the opinion that | had made gbod Tprogress in
negotiating conditions that are appropriate and proportionate. | was disappointed
after the compromises | made were refused, and his comment that the door
supervisor condition ‘is a non-starter' for his client. He continued to comment on
the economic challenges that licensed premises face at this time. In this email Mr
Rathore has provided some photographs of the premise showing its intended
layout. | produce an email with photographs as exhibit M\W05.

12. On 25 November 2020 at 14:10 hours | visited the area around Brook Street. My
intention was to become aware of which premises surrounded The First Post, and
what infrastructure was in place to support a licensed premises operating until
03:30hrs within the night time economy. This visit was to obtain a full undérstanding
of its location, entrances and exits, proximity to the market area, travel provisions
and other local licensed premises. Whilst there | viewed the sighage which has
been erected on the front of the premise. | Iobked through the window and could
see some chairs and stools, but noted that the premise seemed in a state of repair

- with ceiling tiles hanging down. | walked around to the rear of the property though a
small alleWay to the external yard that is accessed from the left hand side of the
building. | was u‘néE)Ié. to access the yard due to the gate being.locked but could see

clearly through the trellis attached to the boundary brick wall. Within this area was a

Signature: Michelle White Signature witnessed by:
RESTRICTED (when complete)

MG11 v2.0 2010 TEST 2



MG11(1)-20
46 Page No 10 of
Continuation of Statement of’ Michelle White 11

door to the rear of the premise, the floor looked recently concreted and looked as if
it could possibly be used as a smoking solution/ beer garden for patrons to use.
Also‘within this area | noted there was a CCTV camera fitted. After observing this
area, | am more convinced of the need for door supervision for both inside the
premises and outside if it is to be used for licensable activities. This has not been
addressed within the application and if this area was to be used | would have
expected this to have been incorporated.

13. From my experience and knowledge of the area it is my opinion that there is no
immediate transport provision within the late night infrastructure to acqommodate
customers leaving the premises at the late terminal hour as applied for. The
nearest taxi rank is located on Fox Street approximately quarter of a mile away
through the main town centre. The bus station is within the same area as the taxi
rank and at 01:00 hours busses cease to operate. The consequences of not
addressing these matters before the business commences means the premise will
contribute to the levels of crime and disorder in the area by having intoxicated
patrons leaving their premise who will then flow on to the street causing problems
for residents. The late hours requested in the licence will also attract revellers later
in the evening Iafter all others have closed. This will lead to a large number of
more intoxicated people congregating at the premise later in the evening with no
measures of how they will leave the town centre. | produce photographs as
exhibits MW06
Summary
Nottinghamshire Police and Mr Rathore on behalf of his client, Trebor Deas Lid,
are unable to reach a compromise on the reduction in times and conditions relating - { -

to door supervisor. | wish to see well managed premises within the county and |

Signature: Michelle White Signature witnessed by:

MG11'v2.0 3010 TEST 2 2 : RESTRICTEPhen ébmplete




Page No 11 of
Continuation of Statement of? Michelle White 11

MGI& L?QO

consider | do promote new applications and businesses in the area, as my
attempts to negotiate the application show, but public safety must remain
" paramount. These amendments to the operating schedule would alleviate the
concerns of Nottinghamshire Police and aid in the running of a successful
business.

Notting_hamshire Police are of the opinion that the recommended conditions and

reduction in hours would be ample measures for the applicant to uphold the licensing

objectives.

Signature: Michelle White Signature witnessed by:

MG11 v2.0 2010 TEST 2 _ RESIRICTED("Vhe'lcm!lpl@t_e)_ i _ pw s Eow



48

Page left
Intentionally blank

© Page 114




~ EXHIBIT

MWO1

1111111



50

Page left |
Intentionally blank

Page 116




o1

00700 O3 002} O€ +0 03 0000 Aepung
00°00 ©3 0£°60 0E°L0 ©} 00°00 Aepinies

siosinadng Jooq

Ml LZLON
00700 ©} 0£°60 AeplL4 01 Aepuoly | Jof UOIPUOD OU YjiMm gnd asenbg alysuonaq ‘UBMS SNUAA
00’00 ©1 00°20 00°L0 C} 00°00 ABPUNS B Aepinles siosiaiedng JooQ N4y LLON

00°00 ©} 00°£0 Aeplid 01 Aepuojy

o} uoljipuoo ou yum gng

‘Joang Wenng /9| ‘ssolD mapN

0€-2¢ 01 00-Z} Aepung
00:€2 ©3 00:1 | Aepines o} Aepuojy

siosialedng oo 10}
UORIPUOD ouU i gni

331 ZLON ‘jusuwaned
UBIH ‘gn|Q (21008 sydasor 19

00°00 0} 00°LL  00°L0-00°00 Aepung
00°00 01000l 00°LDOOI00°00  Aepinjesg o} Aepuopy

uolaIosIp aoljod
e siosiaadng JooQ
40} UORIpUOd ylM gng

1dl ZLDN swened
UbBIH 'suLiy adysuonsq oy L

00:00 ©3 00:0} 0€:Z0 ©3 00:00 Aepung o} Aepuojy

spusyaam
1e siosiAladng Joo(g omy
40} uoRipuod im gnd

HAdlL ZLON
‘Uswaned moT ‘pesy sben au |

00°00 ©} 00'60 00°L0 ©1 00°00 ABpuUng g Aepines
00°00 0} 00°60 0£°00 01 00°00 Aepld o} Aepuoly

weyy Aojdws Ajueunjoa
1ng slosiaJadng Joo(
JOJ UOIIpUOD OU Ulim gngd

vdl ZLON 19243
X04 ‘esnoH ainjold ucodsiayispn ar

adA] sesiwalg

SSalppy pue sweN

AJIAT}OY o|BSUSI] JO oWil] [eulilio]

[oYyo3]y 3O 3|es JO oWl] [BUILIS] - Baly JoNJE[y PUE 2ljUua)) UMO] UOJNS PUNOIE Sasilialg Pasusol]

" Page 117



52

~ Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 118




-~ EXHIBIT

_ - MWO02

1111111



54

Page left
~ Intentionally blank

Page 120



55
White, Michelle

From: White, Michelle

Sent: 04 November 2020 13;22

To: 'walaiti.rathore .

Cc: Dickson, Mark, Insp3794

Subject: 7 The First Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton In Ashfield NG17 1AL

Good afternoon Mr Rathore

Nottinghamshire Police have received your application for a new premises licence at the above address.
After reviewing your application, the local area and other licensed premises within the vicinity we have
concerns regarding the operating hours of the premise. All other licensed premises within this market place
area close around 2am and we would expect any new applications in that area to coincide with this timing.
Historically, when there was a licensed venue on/ or close to the market place, the area suffered higher
than normal levels of ASB and disorder, therefore to avoid these issues | recommend amending the times
to be 1:00am for the last sale of alcohol, with closing up at 01:30am.

- ‘e welcome variation applications to extend opening hours of premises once it has been demonstrated by
he licence holder they can operate safely, responsibly and within the law at all times.

I would like to-propose the following conditions are attached to your licence with your agreement. Some of
these conditions have been included within the operating schedule of the application form and some are
recommended by the police to ensure the licensing objectives are being upheld and beneficial for dealing
with issues which may arise within your premise.

1. A CCTV system with recording equipment shall be installed and recorded on the plan appended to
the licence. The system shall be installed prior to the premises carrying out licensable activities and
maintained in accordance with the system.

2. All recordings used in conjunction with CCTV shalll:

*  be of evidential quality

= Cover the point of sale, and entrance and exit

» indicate the time and date

e be retained for a period of 31 days

»  Sufficient staff will be trained to use the system

* The original images will be made available for inspection immediately upon the request of
Police officers, or other authorised officers.

»  Copies of recordings shall be provided in a format which can be viewed on readily available
equipment without the need for specialist software. :

3. All members of staff shall be fully trained in the retail sale of alcohol. The training shall be ongoing
and each member of staff shall be reviewed every six months. All details of the level of training shall
be recorded in a bound and sequentially paginated book or electronic record. This information shall
be made available for inspection and copying by the Police or any other authorised person on
request and all such books shall be retained at the premises for at least 12 months.

4. Two suitably trained and licensed SIA door supervisors shall be on duty on Friday and Saturday
evening from 21:00 until the premises close. A bound and sequentially paginated book or electronic
record containing names, addresses and full SIA licence number(s) of door supervisors shall be
maintained and kept for a period of twelve months and be available for inspection by the police or
any other authorised person upon request.

This condition may be disapplied by written agreement with the Police at least 1 to 2 working days
prior to the date and time of the disapplication and such written agreement retained at the premises.

5. A bound and sequentially paginated incident book or electronic record shall be kept to record all
instances of disorder, damage to property and personal injury at the premises. This book shall be
made available for inspection and copying by the Police or any other authorised person upon
request and all such books shall be retained at the premises for at least 12 months.

Phge 121



56

6. No customers carrying open bottles upon entry shall be admitted to the premise at any time the
premise is open to the public. '

7. Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premise in open containers save for
consumption in any external area provided for that purpose.

8. A Challenge 25'scheme shall operate at the premises. Any person who'appears to be under 25
' years of age shall not be allowed to purchase alcohol unless they produce an acceptable form of
photo identification. (e.g. passport, driving licence, Military ID or PASS accredited card).

| understand these timas are very uncertain and unprecedented for businesses and they may wish to apply
for more than normal due to the pandemic, in light of this the conditions above are what we feel are

- appropriate and proportionate to a licensed premise operating within this area.

I you have any questions or queries please do not [)eéitate to contact me.
| look forward to hearing from you.
Kind regards

Mrs Michelle White

Licensing Enforcement Officer
County Licensing

Local Policing Unit (Licensing)
Nottinghamshire Police
Mansfield Police Station
Great Central Road

Mansfield

Nottinghamshire

NG18 2HQ

Tel: 101 extension

Email: michelle.white’ R S
Mobile: '

=

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

-“POLICE

Ij_ e S
4P PROUD TO SERVE

2
Page 122



EXHIBIT

PPPPPPP



58

Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 124




59
_White, Mic_hellefi ~

From: Walaiti Rathore _

Sent: 06 November 2020 13:27

To: White, Michelle

Subject: ... RE: The First Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton In Ashfield NG17 1AL

Dear Michelle,
Thank you very much for the email below and for taking my call today.

As mentioned, we are always happy to work in partnership and negotiate ari égreement which all parties can work
with rather than get stuck in how legal arguments might pan out in a hearing. Thank you also for you pragmatic
approach.

You will have seen daunting reports from trade organisations and in the media of city premises facing collapse due to

COVID related costs; they simply cannot operate viably due to the costs of measures necessary and other COVID related
astrictions. All the indicators disturbingly suggest this is only the start of the crisis and things will only get worse with

many businesses struggling to cope and keep staff on. There are serious concerns of towns and cities becoming deserted.

With significantly increasing costs due to COVID and extreme challenges to run a viable business, it is very easy to run a
strong argument that it would be inappropriate and disproportionate for speculation based conditions which would add
unnecessary operational costs.

These operators will of course work with you should there ever be an issue. You also have the added protection of
enforcement and reviews powers which, past record confirms, the Police have used very successfully to deal with
premises which stray out of line. '

This is not to be dismissive of your suggested conditions.
In fact, it is likely that the applicant will agree to most of your conditions (I am awaiting their reply).

However, we will not be able to accept the door staff condition for the reasons discussed but would be happy to look at
the “cognisance/risk assessment” type condition which you mentioned.

» .n addition, it would be appropriate and consistent for the hours to be at least the same as the hours of other late bars
mentioned in your email.

Finally, we would like to keep the age verification condition at challenge 21. Nottinghamshire and City Police have always
accepted my reasons for this.

Subject to final instructions from the.client, it is very likely that wé will be able to reach an agreement on the above basis.
I hope all this seems fair and balanced.

I look forward to hearing from you and thank you for your help.

Kind regards.

Walaiti

Walaiti Rathore
Managing Director

1
Page 125



Lg@nsing Law Consultancy
3 The Triangle,

NG2 Business Park,
Queens Drive,
Nottingham,

NG2 1AE

DD: _ o s
ivi:
E: walaiti.rathore

www.licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk

Licensing Law Consultancy is the trading name of Licence Law Consultancy Limited.
Registered in England and Wales.
“Registered number: 10580885
Registered office: 18 The Ropewalk,
Nottingham, NG1 5DT

Confidentiality: This e-mail and its attachments are intended for the above named only and may be confidential. If they have come to you in error you must
take no action based on them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone; please reply to this e-mail and highlight the error. '

Security Warning: Please note that this e-mail has been created in the knowledge that Internet e-mail is not 100% secure communications medium. We advise”
that you understand and observe this lack of security when e-mailing us. ’

Viruses: Although we have taken steps to ensure that this e-mail and attachments are free from any virus, we advise that in keeping with good computing
practice the recipient should ensure that they are actually virus free.

From: White, Michelle
Sent: 04 November 2020 13:22

To: Walaiti Rathore

Cc: Dickson; Mark, Insp3794 B )
Subject: The First Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton In Ashfield NG17 1AL

Good afternoon Mr Rathore

Nottinghamshire Police have received your application for a new premises licence at the above address.
After reviewing your application, the local area and other licensed premises within the vicinity we have
concerns regarding the operating hours of the premise. All other licensed premises within this market place
area close around 2am and we would expect any new applications in that area to coincide with this timing.
Historically, when there was a licensed venue on/ or close to the market place, the area suffered higher
than normal levels of ASB and disorder, therefore to avoid these issues | recommend amending the times -
to be 1:00am for the last sale of alcohol, with closing up at 01:30am. N
We welcome variation applications to extend opening hours of premises once it has been demonstrated by
the licence holder they can operate safely, responsibly and within the law at all times.

| would like to propose the following conditions are attached to your licence with your agreement. Some of
these conditions have been included within the operating schedule of the application form and some are
recommended by the police to ensure the licensing objectives are being upheld and beneficial for dealing
with issues which may arise within your premise.

1. A CCTV system with recording equipment shall be installed and recorded on the plan appended to
the licence. The system shall be installed prior to the premises carrying out licensable activities and
maintained in accordance with the system.

2. All recordings used in conjunction with CCTV shall:

o be of evidential quality _

» Cover the point of sale, and entrance and exit Y e

o indicate the time and date

e be retained for a period of 31 days

Sufficient staff will be trained to use the system

o The original images will be made available for inspection immediately upon the request of
Police officers, or other authorised officers.

2
Page 126




o Copies of recordings shall be provided in a format which can be viewed on readily availableb 1
equipment without the need for specialist software.

3. All members of staff shall be fully trained in the retail sale of alcohol. The training shall be ongoing
and each member of staff shall be reviewed every six months. All details of the level of training shall
be recorded in a bound and sequentially paginated book or electronic record. This information shall
be made available for inspection and copying by the Police or any other authorised person on
request and“all such books shall be retained at the premises for at'least 12 months.

4. Two suitably trained and licensed SIA door supervisors shall be on duty on Friday and Saturday
evening from 21:00 until the premises close. A bound and sequentially paginated book or electronic
record containing names, addresses and full SIA licence number(s) of door supervisors shall be
maintained and kept for a period of twelve months and be available for inspection by the police or
any other authorised person upon request.

This condition may be disapplied by written agreement with the Police at-least 1 to 2 working days
prior to the date and time of the disapplication and such written agreement retained at the premises.

5. A bound and sequentially paginated incident book or electronic record shall be kept to record all
instances of disorder, damage to property and personal injury at the premises. This book shall be .
made available for inspection and copying by the Police or any other authorised person upon
request and all such books shall be retained at the premises for at least 12 months.

6. No customers carrying open bottles upon entry shall be admitted to the premise at any time the
premise is open to the public.

7. Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premise in open containers save for
consumption in any external area provided for that purpose.

8. A Challenge 25 scheme shall operate at the premises. Any person who appears to be under 25
years of age shall not be allowed to purchase alcohol unless they produce an acceptable form of
photo identification. (e.g. passport, driving licence, Military ID or PASS accredited card).

| understand these times are very uncertain and unprecedented for businesses and they may wish to apply
for more than normal due to the pandemic, in light of this the conditions above are what we feel are
appropriate and proportionate to a licensed premise operating within this area.

If you have any questions or queries please do not hesitate to contact me.
look forward to hearing from you.
Kind regards

Mrs Michelle White

Licensing Enforcement Officer
County Licensing

LLocal Policing Unit (Licensing)
Nottinghamshire Police
Mansfield Police Station
Great Central Road

Mansfield
Nottinghamshire
NG18 2HQ

Tel: 101 extension
Email:

Mabile:

Page 127



r-m

N@T1
PO

[ fiijuDT_ SERVE

Internet e-mail is not to be treated as a secure means of communication. Nottinghamshire Police monitors
all Internet e-mail activity and content. This communication is intended for the addressee(s) only. Please
notify the sender if received in error. Unauthorised use or disclosure of the content may be unlawful. There
is no intent, by Nottinghamshire Police; that this e-mail should constitute a legally binding document, nor do
opinions expressed herein necessarily represent ofﬁ(:lal policy.

Find out about Nottinghamshire Police by visiting Www.nottinqhamshire.police.uk

+ This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

4
Page 128



- EXHIBIT

PPPPPPP



64

Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 130




5

From: White, Michelle <michelle.white

65

Nottingham, NG1 5DT

Confidentiality: This e-mail and its attachments are intended for the above named only and may be confidential. If they have come to you in error you must
take no action based on them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone; please reply to this e-mail and highlight the error.
Security Warning: Please note that this e-mail has been created in the knowledge that Internet e-mail is not 100% secure communications medium. We adyise

that you understand and observe this lack of security when e-mailing us.
Viruses: Although we have taken steps to ensure that this e-mail and attachments are free from any virus, we advise that in keeping with good computing

practice the recipient should ensure that they are actually virus free.

Sent: 11 November 2020 09:43
To: Walaiti Rathore <walaiti.rathore|
Subject: RE: The First Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton In Ashfield NG17 1AL

Good morning Walaiti

Thank you for your email. | have discussed all of the below proposals with the Senior Licensing Officer and
I'am pleased to inform you that we are able to'compromise further since our last discussion. | will list the

amendments below.

In relation to the operating times, |-am able to offer a further 30 minutes to the previous stated times. This
vould mean the latest sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment and late night refreshment would cease
at 01:30am with the premises closing up at 02:00am.

We will allow the request of non-standard timings to remain at 03:00am on those occasions stated within
the application form.

Unfortunately, the SIA condition is difficult to dilute, but | have tried to be flexible and ensure the condition
is relevant to this premises, therefore | would like to propose:

o Two suitably trained and licensed SIA door supervisors shall be on duty on Friday and Saturday
from 21:00 until the premises close when the premises are engaging in licensable activities past
23:00. A bound and sequentially paginated book or electronic record containing names, addresses
and full SIA licence number(s) of door supervisors shall be maintained and kept for a period of
twelve months and be available for inspection by the police or any other authorised person upon
request.

This condition may be disapplied by written agreement with the Police 2 working days prior to the
date and time of the disapplication and such written agreement retained at the premises.

I can accept the amendment to the age condition and approve the Challenge 21 scheme to replace the

“hallenge 25 requirement.

I hope this further information will aid your client in their response.
Kind regards

Mrs Michelle White
Licensing Enforcement Officer

County Licensing

Local Policing Unit (Licensing)

Nottinghamshire Police

Mansfield Police Station ‘ (
Great Central Road

Mansfield

Nottinghamshire

NG18 2HQ

Tel: 101 extension .. )

Email: michelle.white'

Mobile:

Pige 131



' NOTTINGHAVSHIRE
POLICE

PROUD TO SERVE

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com™

4
Page 132



~ EXHIBIT |

MWO5

3333333



68

Page left |
Intentionally blank

Page 134



69
I\White, Michelle

From: Walaiti Rathore <walaiti.rathore A e
Sent: 17 November 2020 15:50

To: White, Michelle

Cc: w J.Alison -

Subject: RE: The First Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton In Ashfield NG17 1AL
Attachments: IMG_2142,jpg; IMG_2149,jpg

Hi Michelle

Hope you are well and keeping safe.
| refer to your recent emails including the one attaching your representation.

However, | thought it would be more helpful to reply to youremail below as it is the up to date position on where we
_ are in terms of our negotiations.

I am also copying in Julian as | am hoping to reach an agreement with you both in relation to your representations.

The sticking point here is the door supervisor condition which is a non-starter for the applicant and | am hoping we
can find a way around this which works for all parties.

You will recall that | made the following points previously:

You will have seen daunting reports from trade organisations and in the media of city premises facing collapse
due to COVID related costs; they simply cannot operate viably due to the costs of measures necessary and other
COVID related restrictions. All the indicators disturbingly suggest this is only the start of the crisis and things will
only get worse with many businesses struggling to cope and keep staff on. There are serious concerns of towns
and cities becoming deserted.

With significantly increasing costs due to COVID and extreme challenges to run a viable business, it is very easy to
run a strong argument that it would be inappropriate and disproportionate for speculation based conditions
which would add unnecessary operational costs.

These operators will of course work with you should there ever be an issue. You also have the added protection
of enforcement and reviews powers which, past record confirms, the Police have used very successfully to deal
with premises which stray out of line.

You will be aware that the National IOL conference took place last week and one of the loudest message was that
responsible authorities will be need to be more sympathetic and supportive towards applications post COVID. There |
is a need more than ever before to look past the usual policies and approaches towards licensing and certainly not
pursue speculation based conditions which are not evidence based. :

It was also said that licensing was always supposed to be light touch and permissive and now more than ever there
is a need for suspension of normal assumptions about how applications are approached. Putting normal preferences
aside to give businesses a chance could be the difference between survival or not. This means putting aside the
normal hoops you might expect people to go through and to be more supportive. There are many provisions in the
Licensing Act to restore balance if ever required.

Against this background, | wanted to provide additional information regarding the premises and style of operation
which will hopefully alleviate your concerns. .

Page 135




Tk first and perhaps most significant point to note is that these are very small premises and | have been advised
that the capacity is just 40 with seating provided for 32 people.

The target clientele has been described as “high end...professionals looking for a wind down in a relaxed
environment”. To create the desired environment there will be no “draught” beer on offer, for example.

The applicant has stated the.following:

“the ambiance we are trying to create is a place where we would like to go and chill out, we want friendly
people in the bhar that come to chat and chill rather than people who just come in to get drunk.. Those kind
of people won't like it as it will not be there scene. We are trying to go for the 40’s plus kind of clientele” -

Please see attached photos taken during the current fit out works which will give you an idea what the premises will
loak like and what they are creating.,

The application form does not lend itself to give a true picture of the premises/styles of operation. Whilst we have
applied for regulated entertainment for flexibility these premises do not lend themselves to type of entertainment -
that may normally give you cause for concern.

It is incredibly brave for new applicants to make such investments when the economy is on its knees with the
hospitality sector shrinking and they should be supported.

| hope the above will alleviate your concerns and that you will be able to support the application without overly
burdensome conditions and/or which would cause an unnecessary financial burden for this type of operation i.e. the
door supervisor condition. As mentioned previously, we would be happy to consider the “cognisance/risk
assessment” type door supervisor condition instead which would give you some control and would be more
appropriate/proportionate.

I look forward to hearing from you.
Many thanks.
Kind regards.

Walaiti ' Y

Walaiti Rathore
* Managing Director

Licensing Law Consultancy
3 The Triangle,

NG2 Business Parl,
Queens Drive,
Nottingham,

NG2 1AE

DD: ____ . _ ..
M
E: walaiti.rathore A ——

www.licensinglawconsultancy.co.uk

Licensing Law Consultancy is the trading name of Licence Law Consultancy Limited.
Registered in England and Wales.

Registered number: 10580885

Registered office: 18 The Ropewalk,

2
Page 136



==




12

Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 138







14

Page left
Intentionally blank

- Page 140



EXHIBIT

MWO06



Page left
Intentionally blank

PPPPPPP



1L

il

A A

Al

i AR

T,

i




78

Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 144



e Lo

b e = e
= =i P

o | |

fe

T - paarl
'gGLHTC!{ OUTLET




80

Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 146



I

——




g2

Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 148



i Sl R




- 84

Page left
Intentionally blank

Page 150



	Agenda
	3 Hearing for Application for a New Premises Licence: The First Post, 16 Brook Street, Sutton in Ashfield.
	The First Post Full Evidence Bundle


